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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFPBHRE

Results ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=t+—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—Eo-f ZE-%F —E-NFE 2\ ZT—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR AREFTRT ARETR
Revenue Yz 2,000,104 2,182,038 3,117,648 2,943,724 2,889,658
Cost of sales HERA (1,827,867)  (1,988,615)  (2,890,495)  (2,680,527)  (2,648,995)
Gross profit =7 172,237 193,423 227,153 263,197 240,663
(Loss) profit before tax BRELAT (B518) A F (15,859) 33,651 44,414 54,658 32,144
(Loss) profit for the year FR(BE)RF (18,059) 30,684 37,763 43,951 32,079
(Loss) profit attrioutable to: WTEHEN (EE)
SaF -
- Owners of the Company —KRRBEAA (17,754) 30,879 38,998 45,393 32,674
- Non-controling interests — RS (305) (195) (1,235) (1,442) (595)
(18,059) 30,684 37,763 43,951 32,079
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
As at 31 December
T=ZA=t-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B ZE-%F ZE-NEFE T\ Z—T—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Total assets BELE 1,102,701 1,207,484 1,625,965 1,190,417 942,502
Total liabilities BELE (786,864) (872,337)  (1,322,972)  (1,026,555) (829,559)
315,837 335,147 302,993 163,862 112,943
Equity attrioutable to: DTSRI -
- Owners of the Company S YNCIEZZ=UN 315,924 333,336 300,987 160,305 107,947
- Non-controling interests — MR 87) 1,811 2,006 3,557 4,996
315,837 335,147 302,993 163,862 112,943
Notes: et -

() The financial figures for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the consolidated financial
statements in the annual reports of 2021 and 2020.

(o)  The financial figures for each of the two years ended 31 December 2018/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the prospectus dated 30
October 2019 (the “Prospectus”).

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

@ BHEZ-—F+-A=+—-BHI=RAEERE/
REZEHBFERNMEBE RG-S =_—F
M ZZE_TFEROEEHERE -

b BHE-Z-AS+-_A=t-BLMAFESE/
RZEREFEROY BHEIRDRHEE _T=NF
+TA=TEMERER(BRER]) -

AL ETBRE B A BERERA—EBD °
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021
to the shareholders of the Company.

Business Review

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group, as one
of the leading ODM mobile phone suppliers based in China,
continued to focus on the research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and |oT related products, targeting emerging markets.

The global economy is gradually moving beyond the shadow
of the novel coronavirus crisis, but it still takes time to resume
to the pre-pandemic levels. 2021 is still a challenging year for
a vast majority of companies. The novel coronavirus crisis has
severely disrupted the global supply chain and such disruption
is expected to persist into 2022. Like other manufacturers of
smartphones and other electronic devices, the Group suffered
from the global shortage of electronic components and screen for
mobile devices, which affected the Group’s production schedule
and significantly increased the Group’s costs of production. As
a result of the aforesaid, the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 decreased by 8.3% to RMB2,000.1
million from RMB2,182.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin for the year ended 31

December 2021 decreased to approximately 8.6% as compared
with approximately 8.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE

To maintain market competitiveness, the Group devoted
more resources into the research and development of own-
branded products and IoT related products and the research
and development expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 increased by 5.5% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2020. Further, contributions to retirement benefits
scheme for the Group’s employees for the year ended 31
December 2021 significantly increased as micro, small and
medium size enterprises enrolled in China Social Security
Schemes were exempt from making employer contributions
to pension, unemployment and work-related injury insurance
schemes between February and December 2020. Overall, the
Group recorded a net loss of RMB18.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 as compared with a net profit of RMB30.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. In response to the
financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has taken various corresponding actions, including but not
limited to cost controls, regular communications with customers
to secure the sales orders and confirm the delivery schedule.

Highlights of the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, as compared to 2020, are shown in the
following table:

BREMBBF N AEEHEZEREA
BB B mAEE R R A REE RO ES
HE-ZT-_—F+-A=-+—HILFENH
BEAREE_T_TF+-_A=+—HIE
FRIEMEE% N HE T - —F+ =
A=+—HILHFE BR2NFETSREST
BRI EE—TE_EF _AE+A
MR ERCARNEEE KERITERRS
EMEEHRN  NEBEEENRIKEFGE
FIERRIEIE N - BEM S - AEEREHZEZ
- F+-_A=F+—HILFEHFFEHIE
ARBIBI1EEL MBE_ZTZ-_ZLF+=
A=+—HLEFENFMNEBEAAREI07E
Br -#tHBE—_T=-_—F+=-A=+—H
IEFEMNPBRR  AEEHDMT SEEE

HTTE) - BIRE TRV AES - E5 5
BBNREREER ERERIMEBX -

AREBE_F- £+ A=+ -ALE
ERERREARE (BT TEEL) B
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLFE

2021 2020
—F=F —E=F

(Audited) (Audited)

(fCER) (JEEZ)

Revenue (RMB’000) Wam (ARBTIT) 2,000,104 2,182,038

Net (loss) profit for the year (RMB’000) FROFEBER) @F (AR TFIT) (18,059) 30,684
(Loss) earnings per share Tk (E18) B

- Basic (RMB cents) —HERX(ARES) (1.78) 3.09

- Diluted (RMB cents) —#% (ARED) (1.78) 3.09
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE

Outlook and Strategy

Going forward, China’s ODM mobile phone market will be filled
with challenges and opportunities. While the global economy
still requires some time to recover, the Group will take this
opportunity to solidify its leading market position. Further, the
Directors consider that the rapid roll-out of 5G telecommunication
network in different parts of the world will drive the demand for
smartphones and loT products.

In order to capture the potential market opportunities and
maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders, the
Group will adopt a prudent approach to develop its business,
enhance its research and development capability, enrich its
product portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to
diversify its geographical locations.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers, banks
and to our management and employees for their continuous
trust and support to the Group. The coming year will be full of
opportunities and challenges and we will strive our best to create
greater value for our shareholders and investors.

By order of the Board
Mr. Li Chengjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& O

Business Overview

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), primarily engaged in
research and development, designing, manufacturing and sale
of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and 10T related
products, targeting emerging markets.

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Revenue generated from PRC and
other emerging markets accounted for 98.3% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group’s
customers include various top local branded mobile phone
suppliers, telecommunication operators and trading companies
in the PRC, India, other Asian countries and other parts of the
world.

The global economy is gradually moving beyond the shadow
of the novel coronavirus crisis, but it still takes time to resume
to the pre-pandemic levels. 2021 is still a challenging year for
a vast majority of companies. The novel coronavirus crisis has
severely disrupted the global supply chain and such disruption
is expected to persist into 2022. Like other manufacturers of
smartphones and other electronic devices, the Group suffered
from the global shortage of electronic components and screen for
mobile devices, which affected the Group’s production schedule
and significantly increased the Group’s costs of production. As
a result of the aforesaid, the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 decreased by 8.3% to RMB2,000.1
million from RMB2,182.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2021 decreased to approximately 8.6% as compared
with approximately 8.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

To maintain market competitiveness, the Group devoted
more resources into the research and development of own-
branded products and IoT related products and the research
and development expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 increased by 5.5% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2020. Further, contributions to retirement benefits
scheme for the Group’s employees for the year ended 31
December 2021 significantly increased as micro, small and
medium size enterprises enrolled in China Social Security
Schemes were exempt from making employer contributions
to pension, unemployment and work-related injury insurance
schemes between February and December 2020. Overall, the
Group recorded a net loss of RMB18.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 as compared with a net profit of RMB30.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Financial Review

Revenue

Revenue by product categories

The Group’ s product portfolio includes smartphones, feature
phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and |oT related products. The
Group mainly derives its revenue from the sales of smartphones
and loT products. Set out below is a breakdown of the Group’s
total revenue by product categories and the revenue generated
from each product category as a percentage of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Bt %5 B B8

W £

%7 E m AR E o ey ik e
AEBENERAESBIEEETFH IR FH# -
FHOHRBIERRAE LB NEERER -
AEEMKEEEREHES e F LY
WEM - TREIVEZE T_—E&_?_
EFE+ A=+ HLFERERENES
MBERERSERENEEMNRZEARAEER
BB DL

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-—F

% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARBTT HAKZEN% ARETT HRKEN%

Mobile phones FH
— Smartphones — R T 949,276 47.5 1,186,640 54.4
— Feature phones —IhRER F i 279,893 14.0 296,746 13.6
Sub-total: NEE 1,229,169 61.5 1,483,386 68.0
PCBAs E[V Il &6 Bt 48 5 19,728 1.0 103,532 4.7
loT related products Y A AE A E 591,308 29.6 480,950 22.0
Others (Note) H A (47a2) 159,899 7.9 114,170 5.3
Total A5t 2,000,104 100.0 2,182,038 100.0

Note: Others mainly include revenue from the sales of mobile device components
used for after sales-services and the provision of research and development
and technical services for mobile phones, PCBAs and cloud related products.

The Group’s total revenue decreased by 8.3% to RMB2,000.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB2,182.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed
to the decreased sales of mobile phones and PCBAs, but
partially offset by the increased sales of loT related products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Revenue from mobile phones decreased by 17.1% to
RMB1,229.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
RMB1,483.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
primarily attributed to the decrease in sales of smartphones to
India, Pakistan and the PRC.

Revenue from PCBAs decreased by 81.0% to RMB19.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB103.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, as (i) more customers placed
orders for mobile phones instead of PCBAs to suit their own
needs; and (i) the Group reserved higher quantities of PCBAs for
the production of mobile phones and 0T related products.

Revenue from 10T related products increased by 22.9% to
RMB591.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
RMB481.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
primarily attributed to the increase in demand for IoT related
products.

HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HIFE kA8
FHOWRBEE - -_EF+_A="+—
BIFFEMARKE148348E LA 171%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Revenue by geographical regions

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Set out below is a breakdown of the
Group’s total revenue by geographical region and the revenue
generated from each region as a percentage of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

R IEN B S D W
AEEREERFEEER YHAODRZ A
FHRFBRAEE RO BETISERRBEES -
TRIBBE-Z-_—FR-_ZF_FTF+=
A=t—RLtFERMREH E’J%@H&ﬁn&’z
wREANKSEEAEBARENE DL

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E=-—F —ZEETF
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETT HAKRZEN% ARETIT HAEKZEN%
Emerging Asia 5 MM 37 8 B =}
India NE 962,219 48.1 1,011,279 46.3
Pakistan B & AR 13,334 0.7 56,749 2.6
People’s Republic of AN AR AN
Bangladesh 199,241 10.0 170,764 7.8
The PRC s 791,076 39.5 919,927 42.2
Sub-total: et 1,965,870 98.3 2,158,719 98.9
Other regions Hithith &
Algeria o] &8 2 A 30 25,132 1.3 22,935 1.0
Others il 9.102 0.4 384 0.1
Sub-total: PR 34,234 1.7 23,319 1.1
Total =1 2,000,104 100.0 2,182,038 100.0

Revenue from India decreased by 4.9% to RMB962.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB1,011.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed to the
global shortage of electronic components and screen for mobile

devices.

Revenue from Pakistan decreased by 76.5% to RMB13.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB56.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed to
decrease in purchase orders for smartphones.

1 2 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Revenue from Bangladesh increased by 16.6% to RMB199.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB170.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed
to increase in demand for smartphones.

Revenue from the PRC decreased by 14.0% to RMB791.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB919.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed
to decrease in sales of mobile phones, but partially offset by the
increase in sales of 0T related products.

Revenue from Algeria increased by 9.6% to RMB25.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB22.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed to the
increase in purchase orders for smartphones.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by 11.0% to RMB172.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB193.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the decreased
sales of mobile phones and PCBAs. Gross profit margin
decreased to 8.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
8.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in
gross profit margin was primarily attributed to the increase in the
costs of raw materials (in particular mobile chips and screen for
the mobile devices) driven by the global shortage of electronic
components.

Other gains and income

Other gains and income mainly include comprises government
subsidies and amortisation of government subsidies,
indemnification for litigation loss from the controlling shareholders,
reversal of provision for social insurance, gain arising from
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss, bank interest income and sundry income. The Group’s
other gains and income decreased by 24.7% to RMB44.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB59.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed to
decrease in government subsidies and gain arising from change
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Selling expenses

Selling expenses mainly represent transportation and custom
declaration expenses, salaries and employee benefits of our sales
and marketing staff, business-related travelling and entertainment
expenses. Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 increased by 8.1% to RMB41.2 million from RMB38.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily attributed
to the increase in transportation and custom declaration
expenses during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Administrative and other expenses

Administrative and other expenses mainly represent salaries
and benefits of our administrative and management staff,
depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets, general office
expenses, legal and professional fees, rental expenses,
insurance expenses, bank charges, exchange losses and other
miscellaneous administrative expenses. Administrative expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2021 increased by 5.6% to
RMB65.9 million from RMB62.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase in administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was primarily attributed to the
increase in litigation claims as detailed in note 41 of this report.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 increased by 5.5% to RMB119.0 million from
RMB112.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
primarily attributed to (i) the increase in contributions to retirement
benefits scheme for the Group’s employees as micro, small
and medium size enterprises enrolled in China Social Security
Schemes were exempt from making employer contributions
to pension, unemployment and work related injury insurance
schemes between February and December 2020; and (i) more
resources devoted into the research and development of own-
branded products and I0T related products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represent interests on discounted
bills, interest portion of lease liabilities, bank borrowings and
factoring loans. The Group’s finance costs for the year ended
31 December 2021 increased by 18.2% to RMB6.5 million from
RMB5.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily
attributed to increase in interest on discounted bills financing and
factoring loans.

Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s income
tax expenses amounted to RMB2.2 million as compared with
RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease in income tax expenses was primarily attributed to the
decrease in assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Net (loss)/profit for the year

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded a net loss of
RMB18.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: a
net profit of RMB30.7 million).

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade and bills receivables
amounted to RMB226.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB339.2
million). The Group generally grants credit period ranging from
30 to 90 days to its customers and allows its PRC customers to
settle their purchases by way of bills with maturity period ranging
from three to six months.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group carefully assesses the
background information and credit worthiness of its customers
before it decides to grant them credit periods. Further, the Group
also closely monitors the payment record of its customers and
regularly reviews the credit terms granted to them. The Group’s
credit assessment is based on various factors, including but not
limited to the financial strength, size of the business and payment
history of customers and length of their business relationship with
the Group.

The Group’s average trade and bills receivables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2021 were 51.6 days (2020: 80.4
days), which were within the range of credit periods normally
offered by the Group to its customers. The shortened average
trade and bills receivables turnover days were primarily attriouted
to the decrease in trade and bills receivables. Based on the
dates of the relevant sales invoices, 99.0% of the Group’s trade
and bills receivables aged within 90 days and the Group did not
notice any substantial long outstanding balances.

Trade and bills payables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade and bills payables
amounted to RMB524.1 million (31 December 2020: RMB592.0
million). Suppliers generally grant the Group credit period ranging
from 30 to 60 days, with certain suppliers require the Group
to make advance payment before product delivery. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. Certain
suppliers allow the Group to settle its purchases by way of bank
acceptance bills and the Group may also endorse certain bills
receivables to its suppliers in order to settle the trade payable
due to them.

The Group’s average trade and bills payables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2021 were 111.4 days (2020:
134.8 days). The shortened average trade and bills payables
turnover days were primarily attributed to the decrease in trade
and bills payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Capital structure, liquidity, financial
resources and gearing

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 November 2019. There
has been no change in the capital structure of the Group since
then. The Group mainly funds its business and working capital
requirements by using a balanced mix of internal resources,
borrowings and funds from the global offering.

The funding mix will be adjusted depending on the costs of
funding and the actual needs of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group recorded a positive cash flow
from operating activities of RMB3.6 million (Year ended 31
December 2020: negative cash flow of RMB40.1 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets
of RMB218.7 million (31 December 2020: RMB232.1 million),
cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB82.9 million (31
December 2020: RMB26.3 million), pledged bank deposits
of RMB219.2 million (31 December 2020: RMB251.1 million)
and borrowings amounted to RMB58.2 million (31 December
2020: RMB53.5 million). The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings of
RMB38.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB31.4 million) subject
to fixed interest rates and borrowings of RMB19.8 million (31
December 2020: RMB22.1 million) subject to variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a current ratio of
1.3 times (31 December 2020: 1.3 times) and gearing ratio of 0.2
(calculated by dividing total debt by total equity) (31 December
2020: 0.2).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unutilised borrowing
facilities amounted to RMB120.9 million (31 December 2020:
RMB148.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred cash
flows on capital expenditures for the purchase of properties,
plant and equipment in the amount of RMB3.1 million (2020:
RMB30.5 million); and intangible assets in the amount of RMB4.0
million (2020: RMBO0.8 million), respectively.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have capital
commitments in relation to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment (31 December 2020: nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2020: nil).

Pledge of assets and restricted deposit

As at 31 December 2021, the Group pledged trade and bills
receivables with carrying amount of RMB38.9 million (31
December 2020: RMB29.4 million), bank deposits with carrying
amount of RMB219.2 million (31 December 2020: RMB251.1
million) and land and building with carrying amount of RMB53.7
million (31 December 2020: RMB56.8 million) to secure its
borrowings and banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have restricted
deposit (31 December 2020: 16.2 million).

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

Significant investments held by the group

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not make any other
significant investments during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Future plans for material investments and
capital assets

On 26 November 2020, Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
(“Sprocomm Intelligence”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an investment agreement with
the Management Committee of New Lingang Area of PRC
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone* (R B (BB HE Ak E
fRAEHHFEREEZ89) (the “Lingang Committee”), pursuant
to which, among others, (i) Sprocomm Intelligence agreed to set
up a smart device R&D headquarters at New Lingang Area with
an investment of fixed assets of not less than RMB120 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$142 million); and (i) Lingang
Committee agreed to provide various kinds of support and
subsidy to Sprocomm Intelligence. As at 31 December 2021,
the aforesaid investment was still in a preliminary planning stage.
For the investment amount and schedule and other details
of this investment agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 November 2020.

In the first quarter of 2022, the public bidding for the relevant
land parcel took place. The Group and the Lingang Committee
entered into a land use right transfer agreement, pursuant to
which the Lingang Committee agreed to transfer the land use
right for the land parcel situated at Nanhui New Town, Pudong
New Area (a site area of 6,373.3 square metres) to the Group
at a consideration of approximately RMB14.3 million. It is
expected that the construction of the research and development
headquarters on this land parcel will commence in the third
quarter of 2022.

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any future
plans for material investments and capital assets during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Foreign exchange risks

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group derived
60.5% (2020: 57.8%) of its total revenue from export sales
and these export sales were principally denominated in USD.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had USD-denominated
monetary assets with carrying amount of RMB141.2 million (31
December 2020: RMB201.4 million) and USD-denominated
monetary liabilities of RMB49 million (31 December 2020:
RMB19.1 million). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from its export sales, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. Any appreciation of RMB
against USD will have a negative impact on the Group’s profit
margin. Management of the Group regularly reviews the impact
of exchange risk exposure on the Group’s financial performance
and may use foreign exchange hedging instruments to reduce
the Group’s exchange risk exposure if appropriate.

Employees, remuneration policy and
training

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,022 employees (31
December 2020: 1,836 employees), whose remunerations and
benefits are determined based on market rates, government
policies and individual performance. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group’s total staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments, salaries, allowances and other benefits
and contributions to retirement benefits scheme) amounted
to RMB137.7 million (2020: RMB143.9 million). To provide
incentives or rewards to its employees, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in the
section headed “Share option scheme” in this report. The Group
provides comprehensive training and development opportunities
to its employees on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged
according to needs of employees, which are identified annually
by individual departments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are required to participate in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated
by the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined
Contribution Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i)
for the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no forfeiture
of contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and
(i) there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined
Contribution Scheme as at 31 December 2021. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Defined Contribution Scheme.

Use of proceeds from initial public offering

Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 13 November 2019. The net proceeds
from the initial public offering (the “IPO”), net of underwriting
commissions and other relevant expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$84.4 million. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has fully utilised such proceeds in accordance with the
section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 October 2019 (the
“Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

The use of the net proceeds from 13 November 2019 upto 31 B - ZT—hF+—A+=Z=HEZ T - — 4
December 2021 had been applied as follows: +ZA=+—8B FIBREFENERABR
LU
Utilised net Unutilised
proceeds from net proceeds
IPO as at from IPO as at
Planned use of 31 December 31 December  Expected timeline for unutilised net
net proceeds 2021 2021  proceeds
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately)  from IPO
BE-2--F BE-2--F
+=A=t+-H +=A=+-H
EEAZER REAZER
TEERFAE ARBERSB ARBERS
REFE NEFHE HEFE BDRAEALHRZERDA
(#B#5) (##) (BR) FMERRERENESERE
Enhance SMT production HK$38.8 million HK$38.8 million - NA
capacity
RABE R ER 3BBEEET 3BEEBAET @R
Enhance research and HK$14.2 milion HK$14.2 million - NA
development capabilities
R AL T 142BEBT 142BEBT AR
Enhance sales and marketing HK$8.6 million HK$8.6 million - NA
force to diversify customer
base
IR SHE R iigHEE N E A 86EBAT 86EBAT il
ZRACEPER
Upgrade enterprise planning HK$5.7 million HK$5.7 million - NA
resource system
AREEHERER 5.7EBBT 5.78BBT il
Repayment of bank loans HK$8.8 million HK$8.8 million - NA
BEBRTER 88HEABT 88EEBATL il
General working capital HK$8.3 million HK$8.3 million - NA
—KREELR 83FEBT 83EBAT il
Total HK$84.4 million HK$84.4 million -
@t B44EEAET B44EEAET
Event after the reporting period WEHEZREE

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group does not have any
important events after the year ended 31 December 2021 and up

to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEBN

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Chengjun (Z & &), aged 49, is an executive Director,
the chief executive officer and the chairman of the Board
and is mainly responsible for corporate strategic planning,
overseeing the overall operations, day-to-day management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Li established
Shenzhen Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd.* ORYIKR E B =B A R A 7)) (“Shenzhen Sprocomm”),
the main operating subsidiary of the Group, with Mr. Xiong
Bin on 16 September 2009. He is also currently the director
of the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Shenzhen Sprocomm,
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Holdings Limited (7~ & & ge 42 ie B
[ 2 &), Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (A& B{ERIE AR
A A]), Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (BN AR E @R B R A A]), Chengdu Sprocomm Cloud
Technology Co., Ltd.* (A & K & E & £ & R 2 &), Guizhou
Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (& /M A E & R Rl %
A BRA 7)), Grace Kirin Limited (1% % A R A &]) and Shenzhen
Fengma New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (% 3l /& 5 ¥7 #&
JREHE B R A Al). Mr. Liis a director of Leap Elite Limited, a
controlling Shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Li has more than 20 years of relevant experience in the
mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Li held a senior management position in the wireless network
department and terminal department of Shenzhen Huawei
Technologies Co., Ltd* (& JI1ZE & £ 17 B R 2 &), a company
principally engaged in the telecommunication equipment
business from April 1997 to February 2007, where he was mainly
responsible for the research and development of communication
terminal and sales and marketing. From August 2007 to June
2009, Mr. Li served as the chief executive officer of the business
operation headquarters of SIM Technology Group Limited (& &l
Bl &= E AR A7) (stock code of Stock Exchange: 02000)
(“SIM Technology”), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange and is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of liquid crystal display
modules, mobile handset solutions, and wireless communication
module solutions, where he was mainly responsible for
overseeing its PRC operation and management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beihang University (1t 2 it ZZ i K K E) in July 1994 with a
bachelor degree majoring in electrical technology, and then,
graduated with a master degree of engineering in March 1997.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. XIONG Bin (8&#2), aged 44, is an executive Director and
vice chairman of the Board and is mainly responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group. Mr. Xiong is
one of the founders of Shenzhen Sprocomm on 16 September
2009. He is also currently the director and vice general manager
of Shenzhen Sprocomm and the supervisor of Shanghai
Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (.t /& &
Wi ERE AR 2 ), Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B M K & @815 BB R 2 7)), Guizhou
Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (EM X EHFZRIE A
[} 2 7)), Shenzhen Fengma New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*
CFRINEFE FEER B B R 2 Al) and Luzhou Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (J& /I & & @ = Bl &%
B R 7)) (formerly known as Luzhou Sipukang Technology Co.,
Ltd.* CEM B & ER AR A F]). Mr. Xiong is a director of
Beyond Innovation Limited, a controlling Shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Xiong has over 15 years of relevant experience in
the mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Xiong served in Amoi Electronics Co., Ltd. (E#FTEF RN A
R 2 &]) (“Amoi Electronics”) from July 1999 to May 2008,
where he first served as the vice general manager of finance
department responsible for handling the export business and
finance work of the overseas subsidiaries and later as the vice
general manager of the overseas sales department responsible
for overseas sales of smartphone products. Amoi Electronics is
principally engaged in research, manufacturing and sales of
smartphone and other electronic products. From May 2008 to
August 2009, Mr. Xiong served as the general manager of the
overseas sales department of SIM Technology, where he was
mainly responsible for marketing and sales of the overseas
smartphone ODM business. Mr. Xiong graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (2 # 3£ T KX £) in June
1999 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
taxation. Mr. Xiong also obtained the qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (non-practising) in the PRC in December
2004.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. GUO Qinglin (28 B #k), aged 39, is an executive Director
and is mainly responsible for managing the operation of supply
chain and sales activities of the Group. He is also currently the
director of the supply chain operation centre of Shenzhen
Sprocomm and a supervisor of Shenzhen Sprocomm. Mr. Guo
has approximately 13 years of relevant experience in the mobile
communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo
served as a manager in the overseas sales department of Amoi
Electronics from September 2005 to December 2008, where he
was mainly responsible for developing overseas customers,
maintaining the customer relationship and sales of the company’s
main products. From April 2009 to December 2009, Mr. Guo
served as sales director in the overseas sales department of
Nanjing Wanlida Technology Co., Ltd.* (F 3 &8 M Z R AR D
A]), a company principally engaged in the production of
computers, mobile phones and projectors, where he was mainly
responsible for developing overseas customers, maintaining the
customer relationship and sales of the company’s main products.
Mr. Guo graduated from Jimei University* (£ 3 X £) in July
2005 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
international economy and trading.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. WEN Chuanchuan (i&)I1JI]), aged 35, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June 2021.
Prior to Mr. Wen’s appointment as an executive Director, he is a
member of the senior management of the Company. Since 21
September 2016, Mr. Wen has been serving as the director of
the manufacturing centre of Shenzhen Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (R JII K & i 15 B &
B BR A 7)), a company established under the laws of the PRC
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
has been responsible for supervising the operation of the
production plants of the Group. He is also currently (i) the director
of Luzhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.*
CE MR E R{ERF AR QF]), formerly known as Luzhou
Sipukang Technology Co., Ltd.* (BN B EREEFZGRAR]), a
company established under the laws of the PRC and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (ii) the general
manager of Chengdu Sprocomm Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.”
(A # K EH ERI AR A T), a company established under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wen worked as an
assistant engineer of Huawei Machine Company Limited* (% &
22 A PR A A1), a company principally engaged in research,
development, manufacturing and sales of communication
products from July 2011 to October 2014, where he was mainly
responsible for reviewing the manufacturing plan and leading trial
verification for new smartphone products. Mr. Wen served as a
director of the assembly plant of Shenzhen Andao Yunke
Company Limited* (&3 % 8 ZFHR 9 B R 2 §), a company
principally engaged in development and manufacturing of smart
terminals, capacitive touch screens, machine assembly, metal
and glass components and mobile phone accessories from
November 2014 to September 2016, where he was responsible
for the establishment of machine assembly department and
assisting in the operation of the company’s departments and
subsidiaries.

Mr. Wen graduated from the Northwest A&F University (75 1t &
MFELH K E) with a bachelor’s degree of management majoring
in electronic commerce in the PRC in July 2008. In June 2011,
Mr. Wen graduated from the Xi’an Jiaotong University* (78 &2 22
KB %E 1 2[7) and obtained a master’s degree of engineering
majoring in industrial engineering.

* For identification purpose only

26 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2021

BINFZE 3555 BEZETAERRAHT
EE BT —FRNAHRBES - ZTA
EEBRTEE 2R BFAXRASRERE
EBRE -BZZT—R"FALAZT—HE A%
F-EEAFINREBEREERAR (—HE
BIERBERZKA AR WAARRRE
ZEMBAR) vESF BEEBASEHEE
BE R EE - IR I A EIMNRE BERHT
ERAR (FIEEMNBEERBHEER AR (—
MBEREERKIMAF  WAARR G M
E2EMBRAR)Z2ES  Ri)KBREER
BERAR (—HEBREBEPBEEARKZAAT -
WAARARIBEEEZENBRR) ZHBLEE - I
AXREBZp BEER_T—FLAZE
ZENFETRAAEAKEERAR(—HEE
DREBINERNTR  FHE RELEEN
AE)WEBNETRRM  FZGE5EMEES
LEEHMEETFHRERMARARSE RLEE
RZE—NF+—AE_E—R"FNLAGE
RV ZBERRNDBERAG (—HEERE
FE M BLER KR EANERER - #eSH
2 eBMEEAGURFEEHNAR) M
AR - B & A E WSR3 A & 15 B
RNaE) &R M B A R EBIE o

BEER-_ZFZENFLARENFEAILR
MEHRAR BEFTRBEXRETESE T8
TRZFB-——FRAZERALRRBASRE
BEL  BIXTIREXRTRBELTEM -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Wai Man JP (3£ A R), aged 53, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.
Mr. Hung is a Deputy to the 13th National People’s Congress,
the Principal Liaison Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen Qianhai
Authority, and Adjunct Professor of the Belt and Road Research
Institute of Hainan University.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel investor. He
has worked in the computer industry for over 30 years. A well-
known figure in the industry, Mr. Hung has extensive experience
in management consulting, project management and outsourcing
services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology
Professional and a fellow of the British Computer Society, the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Internet Professional Association. He has been
appointed as one of the Global Council Members by the World
Summit Awards.

Mr. Hung is currently Executive Chairman of Chinese Big
Data Society, Vice President of Guangdong’s Association For
Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong
and Macao, Chairman of Hong Kong Road Safety Association,
Chairman Emeritus of the Y.Elites Association, President Emeritus
of Internet Professional Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte
Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong,
Secretary General of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation and Council Member of Hong Kong Professionals
and Senior Executives Association etc. In 2012 to 2014, he had
served as an associate member of the Central Policy Unit of
the HKSAR Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was selected as
one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He
was a Standing Committee Member of the 11th All China Youth
Federation. In 2015, he was appointed as a Justice of the Peace
by the Hong Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he was given the
Asia Social Innovation Leadership Award by CMO Asia.
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Mr. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Higher Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He
then obtained a BA (Hons) from the University of Bolton, MBA
from the University of Hull and MA in Public and Comparative
History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also
obtained a LLM and LLD from the Renmin University of China, a
Master of Business Administration (Executive) from City University
of Hong Kong and PhD in Business Administration from Bulacan
State University, the Philippines.

Mr. Hung is currently an independent non-executive director of
LH Group Limited (stock code: 01978) and Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 01221), the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was also an independent non-
executive director of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0404) from January to September 2019.

Mr. WONG Kwan Kit (EE7), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019. Mr.
Wong has over 19 years of experience in accounting and financial
management, mergers and acquisitions gained from certain
finance related positions of companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of Man
Sang International Limited (stock code: 00938) and Culturecom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00343), both of companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. LU Brian Yong Chen (& 7k Bf), aged 58, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.
Mr. Lu has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director of InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
is principally engaged in designs, development and provision
of communication system and manufacture and sale of signal
transmission and connectivity products since June 2015. Mr.
Lu has over 22 years of management experience in Fortune
100 companies in Australia, Hong Kong and the PRC, assisting
in their business transformation and growth. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lu served as a manager, design/architecture
of IBM Australia Limited, a company principally engaged in
manufacturing and selling computer hardware and software and
providing relevant services from May 1995 to April 2001, where
he was responsible for managing network architecture. From
April 2001 to June 2012, Mr. Lu then served as a client unit
executive in the IBM global technology services department of
IBM China/Hong Kong Limited, a company principally engaged
in manufacturing and selling computer hardware and software
and providing relevant services, where he was responsible for the
department’s strategic planning and execution. Mr. Lu was an
industry consultant of IBM (China) Company Limited, a company
principally engaged in manufacturing and selling computer
hardware and software and providing relevant services from June
2012 to June 2015.

Mr. Lu graduated from South China University of Technology
(R IE T K2) with a bachelor degree majoring in engineering
in Computer Science in July 1986 and from the University of
New South Wales, Australia with a master degree of information
science in October 1994.
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Ms. TSENG Chin | (& # %), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019. Ms.
Tseng is a veteran financial programme host with over 25 years
of experience in Hong Kong, including hosting, presenting and
moderating television programmes and forums in relation to
the PRC and international economy and finance. Ms. Tseng
has been serving as a presenter in Phoenix Satellite Television
Company Limited (Bl [l &7 48 & R 2 &), which is an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings
Limited (currently known as Phoenix Media Investment (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 2008), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, where she is responsible for hosting and
presenting television programmes and broadcasts relating to the
PRC and international economy and finance. She has also been
a standing committee member of Ifeng Finance Institute (/8|2 43
BF 427155 B%), a non-profit making research institute focusing on
providing financial information via expert interview, conference
reports, research reports, financial and wealth management
forums since November 2016. She has been a life associate
member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association since January 2017. Ms. Tseng graduated from Fu
Jen Catholic University (K= 28 & {Z K2, formerly known as L
37 85 {Z K &) with a bachelor degree of arts majoring in mass
communication in June 1991.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Shangheng (%l 4 18), aged 38, has been serving as
the financial controller of Shenzhen Sprocomm since December
2011. He is also a director of Shanghai Hemiao Chuangxian
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.* ( £/ K& &l B e RHE B R A
al).

Mr. Liu has over 10 years of experience in financial work and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu held office
relating to cost accounting in Qingdao Haixin Communication
Technology Company Limited* (& & /&5 B{ERIMTAER A7), a
company principally engaged in research, development,
manufacturing and sales of mobile communication terminal
products from August 2006 to October 2008, where he was
mainly responsible for production cost accounting, cost analysis
and control related work. Mr. Liu then served as a director of
finance in Shenzhen Xiongtao Power Supply Technology
Company Limited* (Z I SRR EBKRHBER A R), a
company principally engaged in research, manufacturing and
sales of battery from November 2008 to October 2011, where he
was mainly responsible for cost accounting and preparing the
financial statements and analysis.

Mr. Liu graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics

and Law (7 BF &L BUE K 2) in June 2006 and obtained two
bachelor degrees majoring in accounting and economics.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEREE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view
to being a transparent and responsible organisation which is
open and accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate governance
and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to
meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company to ensure the transparency and
accountability of all operations of the Company. The Company
believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the shareholders of the Company.
The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group from time to time to ensure
that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise
return.

Adoption and compliance of corporate
governance practices

The Company has adopted a set of corporate governance
practices which aligns with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since the Listing Date. Except
for code provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Under the current
organisation structure of the Company, Mr. Li Chengjun is the
Group’s chief executive officer, and he also performs as the
chairman of the Board as he has considerable experience in
the mobile communication industry. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both the chairman of our Board and the chief
executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Although Mr. Li Chengjun performs both the roles of chairman
of the board and chief executive officer, the division of
responsibilities between the chairman of the board and chief
executive officer is clearly established. In general, the chairman
of the board is responsible for supervising the functions and
performance of the Board, while the chief executive officer is
responsible for the management of the Group’s businesses. The
two roles are performed by Mr. Li Chengjun distinctly. Further,
the current structure does not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the Board
and the effective functions of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Model code for securities transactions
by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

CG Code provisions A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li Chengjun currently holds both of the chairman and chief
executive officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed
“Adoption and compliance of corporate governance practices”
above in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. Their skills, expertise and number in the Board
ensure that strong independent views and judgement are
brought in the Board’s deliberations and that such views and
judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making process.
Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Company annually assesses the independence
of each independent non- executive Director during their terms
of appointment. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation of their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent from 1
January 2021 to the date of this report.
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The Board

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’s composition
as at 31 December 2021 is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

EEg

EECHANANTESE NUEZ B IEHNTT
EFHAK R_ZTE-_—F+=-_A=+—8" &

EENEREINNT

HITES

Date of joining

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities
HE FiR 1 Bl INAZAEBE B H BERBE
Mr. Li Chengjun 49 Male 16 September 2009 Corporate strategic planning, overseeing
THRELE £ ZEEAFNATRA the overall operations, day-to-day
management and business development
of the Group
REENARIRIKEHRE  BEEEES
B ARBEREREBER
Mr. Xiong Bin 44 Male 16 September 2009 Overseeing the sales and marketing of
AR SR A e ZEEAFNAATRA the Group
EEAEEMNIHE NTISHER
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan 35 Male 1 June 2021 Overseeing the production of the Group
B 54 Es —EZ—FXHA—H EEAREENEE
Mr. Guo Qinglin 39 Male 18 January 2010 Managing the operation of supply chain
FLEME A E —ZE-ZTF—-HA+N\AH and sales activities of the Group

EEAEENHEREFNEELRD
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Date of joining

BAFHTES

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

#"E Fir 4 5l MAAREBEH BB BERBE

Mr. Hung Wai Man 53 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

HAEREE £ —ZE—NF+A+/\B  judgement to the Board
EERAREEGIRMEIE A

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit 49 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BEEREE e —ZE-AF+A+NAH judgement to the Board
EELREFGIRMIE T HIE

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen 58 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

=K R A 3 —ZT—AF+A+/\HB judgement to the Board
EERREFGRMIBE S HIE

Ms. Tseng Chin | 53 Female 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BERLT Z —ZE—nF+A+/\B  judgement to the Board

For the biographical details of and relationships among the
members of the Board, please refer to the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the telecommunication and internet
industry, while the four independent non-executive Directors
possess professional knowledge and broad experience in
accounting, finance, business and corporate governance. The
Directors are of the opinion that the current Board structure
can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board and
provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It also oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of
directors

Each of the executive Directors, expect Mr. Wen Chuanchuan
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing on the Listing Date, until terminated
by enter party giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing to the other. Mr. Wen Chuanchuan was appointed as
an executive Director on 1 June 2021 and he has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 1 June 2021, until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on Listing Date, until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

According to article 109(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting one
third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The
Company at the general meeting at which a Director retires may
fill the vacated office.

According to article 113 of the Articles, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director, provided that the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.
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According to 109(a) and 113 of the Articles, Mr. Wen
Chuanchuan, Mr. Xiong Bin, Mr. Hung Wai Man and Ms. Tseng
Chin I will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Board diversity policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 12 November 2019, which sets out the
objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
The Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company should
endeavor to ensure that the Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience, and diversity of perspectives that
are required to support the execution of its business strategy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria and the
attributes that they will bring to the Board to complement and
enrich the competencies, experience and diversity of the Board.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, a number of factors will
be taken into account in determining the board composition to
achieve board diversity, including but not limited to professional
experience, skills, knowledge, age, gender, education, cultural
background and length of service.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, such
as assessing annually on the board’s diversity profile and
gender balance. The Nomination Committee would discuss any
revisions to the Board Diversity Policy that may be required and
recommend any such revisions and the appointment of suitable
candidates to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria, process and procedures for
the Nomination Committee to recommend suitable candidates for
directorship with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee will propose a candidate for
nomination or a Director for re-election based on the followings:

the Board Diversity Policy and the requirements under the
Listing Rules;

—  the expected contribution the candidate would add to the
Board and to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

—  the candidate or the re-elected Director is able to commit
and devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

—  the level of independence from the Company, and potential
or actual conflicts of interest of the candidate or the re-
elected Director; and

—  other relevant factors considered by Nomination Committee
on a case-by-case basis.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination process

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring that the
selection criteria are being applied consistently and fairly in the
nomination process and confirming the same to the Board when
making its recommendation on appointment.

A.

40

Procedures for appointment of new Director
Subject to the provisions in the Articles, if the Board
recognises the need to appoint a new Director, the following
procedures should be adopted:

the Nomination Committee identifies candidates in
accordance with the selection criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy and with the assistance from the
Group’s human resources department and external
agencies (if necessary);

the Nomination Committee evaluates the candidates
and recommends to the Board the appointment of the
appropriate candidate for directorship; and

the Board decides the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

Procedures for re-election of Director at general
meeting

Procedures for re-election of Director at general meeting are
set out as follows:

the Nomination Committee reviews the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring Director;

the Nomination Committee also reviews and
determines whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the selection criteria set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

the Nomination Committee shall recommend to the
Board which shall then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of
Director at the general meeting.
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C. Procedures for nomination by shareholders
Procedures for nomination by shareholders are set out as
follows:

— the Company’s website sets out the procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director; and

—  for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the selection criteria
set out in the Nomination Policy and to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
shall recommend to the Board which shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company’s Annual Report, how
the Policy is being applied in recommending candidates for
directorship and retiring Directors for re-election during the year.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
periodically in line with the Company’s strategy and recommend
any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee conducted the followings:

—  reviewed and confirmed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the split between number of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors
remained appropriate for the Board to perform its duties;

— reviewed and confirmed the Board has a diverse mix of
skills, knowledge, experience and gender;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

- formulated the Nomination Policy and made a
recommendation to the Board for adoption.

Proceedings of board meetings and board
committee meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction
of business. An annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) shall be called by at least 21 days’ (and not less than
20 clear business days’) notice in writing, and a general meeting
of the Company, other than an AGM, shall be called by at least
14 days’ (and not less than 10 clear business days’) notice in
writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract
or arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close
associate(s) has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his
vote shall not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum
for that resolution).
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2021:

UTEHNSESHRFEE S -_—F+=A4
=t HIFEMBTHNARREES S H
ZEeEI ABRRERARENFMLE

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HEE/ ERETRY
Regular Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors BEpg EREZESE BENZEESE REZEESE FHEESER REAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Chengjun FHRERE 4/4 - 17 - 1
Mr. Xiong Bin i 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Li Hongxing IERE 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Guo Qinglin SEMEL 44 - _ _ 1A
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan B4 4/4 2/2 1 1N 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV F#{TES
Mr. Hung Wai Man HEREE 4/4 2/2 - 17 17
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BREARE 4/4 2/2 17 17 17
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BKREE 4/4 2/2 17 17 17
Ms. Tseng Chin | LEETL 4/4 - 17 17 17

The Board will make arrangements for holding at least four
regular Board Meetings in each financial year.

The Board has established three committees: (i) the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”); (i) the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”); and (jii) the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
Company (www.sprocomm.com). All committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian
Yong Chen and Mr. Hung Wan Man. Mr. Wong Kwan Kit is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include ensuring
that an effective financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems are in place and compliance of the
Listing Rules, reviewing the financial statements, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditors and assessing their independence and
qualifications, and ensuring the effective communication with
external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and the work performed by the Audit
Committee was summarised as follows:

1. reviewed the Company’s interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020;

2. reviewed the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021, which set out the Group’s accounting
policies, financial performance and position;

3.  reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors and the independent internal control reviewer;

44 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2021

BEREES
ARACBREMRAUFBINEREEXER
SRR ZE-AFTATNBRIERE
Bg YAHAZHEREHE BEZZEENHE
RBE A NBRXA R AT EEER -

ERZBEH=RBIUIFNTESHEK B
NEEREVZBEER -

ERZEENIERECHEERRA AN
BAFS R~ PO RR I A N LB PR R A S ST b
mARR - BHPBEE  SRINEZBENTR
AEFSRhEREZZEMMAELB I ITRERF
AR i (R L ONBE AZ BB 2 TR 0 B RUB 4

HE-TE-_—F+-_A=+—HBItFE &
REEESCCERITMACH BEXLEENT
EREAL N T -

1. BHEARRBE_T-_—FA=+H
EAREANFRERERBE_T_FTF
T A=t HLEFENFEES

2. BEHARABIBE_ZT-_—FXA=1H
LEAREANFHRERERBE_T_FTF
TZA=+t—RLFENFERS &
PHAEAKREMNEFBER MBRAR
I

3. WA EZEBELBIAEEEE A
ERERREBRER



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

4. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
engagement of external auditors;

5. reviewed the audit plan, internal control plan, the
development in accounting standards and their effects on
the Group, financial reporting and risk management matters;

6. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

7. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on
18 October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Wai Man, Mr. Wong Kwan
Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen and Ms. Tseng Chin I. Mr. Hung Wai
Man is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board in determining the
remuneration policy for and remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management, reviewing incentive schemes
and service contracts of the Directors and senior management,
and evaluating the performance of the Directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee was summarised as follows:

1. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors, senior management and employees
of the Group;

2. reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration policy;
and

3. evaluated the performance of Directors and senior
management of the Group.
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Nomination committee
The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with CG Code provision A.5.1. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee consists of four Directors, namely
Mr. Li Chengjun, Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen
and Ms. Tseng Chin |. Mr. Li Chengjun is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
assisting the Board in identifying suitable candidates for the
Directors and making recommendations to the Board, assessing
the structure and composition of the Board, preparing, making
recommendations to and supervising the execution of the board
diversity policy and nomination policy of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and the work performed by the
Nomination Committee was summarised in the paragraph
headed “Nomination policy” of this corporate governance report.

Dividend policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

Declaration of dividend will be made at the discretion of the
Board and will be based upon the Group’s earnings, cash
flows, financial conditions, capital requirements, statutory fund
reserve requirements and any other conditions that our Directors
consider relevant. The declaration, payment and amount of
dividend will also be subject to the Company’s constitutional
documents including, where necessary, the approval of the
shareholders.
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The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks
fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Company that any dividend will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

Corporate governance function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.

EFeNTHRIKREBRR WEFTERA
BEHLE  ATEEE - REBHBISERE
RS  EFT N SHEBIRBBGR - B TR
SELCAEERBRNEAFESENRE
P B BB FE AR X B SRR AR5 E 2 B AR
B EBERNRNEER I TERER
RBEPEAAIRSE S AFEIREE

AN A fm S T L

i E T IR 8E
EEeWERTPEETATES HOLET
AL ECRTTHREShESeBREETL
FIREE

1. BRI AR AR RHEEEGRE N ER

2. RAMCEREELRSAEEENHEIR
FESXRRRER:

3. RURERARAREBTEEZREER
ETHEABREER

4. HIET RO MERERNEENREEN
IRSTARERFM@AE) &

5. REIARREBTERERTANERR
EEREABREANNKE -

CEREABRENHIEEHEREETSER
BRARRES - BAREED - AREAAE
ERRNEAELRBEE EF2RNE
SFSF AR S 3 E Bl aT R R B VRBUR A
RESKTEERTREEE R BREAK
B EXENEERERIER -

—Z——44% Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 47



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Directors participated in the following continuous professional
development:

SEEXRR
RIEEXREATAGRNFEALSKR =2RES
R2EGEEXBERABUERLREHNES
ZRBR R BRRSEHESSHELAL
KA ER - ARBARBE LT REMFI
TEERAEE AR B BE -#HE—
E_—F+-A=+t—HLEFE ARAD
ZHAMBESFRHEINI B2 _F—_—F
TZAZT-RLEFE -EF2HBTIEE
BEERRE:

Training on
corporate
governance,
director’s duties,
environment, social

and governance, Reading
and/or regulatory materials
update updating on
(Note 1) new rules and
T¥EESR EERE - regulations
BE HEREARD MEEHEK
EIR/BEHRE HHROGRHAE
Name of Directors EENE (M 1) &R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Chengjun THEELE v v/
Mr. Xiong Bin BRI L& v v
Mr. Li Hongxing FURSEE v 4
Mr. Guo Qinglin MEMEE v v
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan BN E v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BYFHTES
Mr. Hung Wai Man HERTE v v
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEEANGE v v
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen mIKBRE v v
Ms. Tseng Chin | LR T v v
Notes: st
1. Professional training was arranged by the Company to update the Directors’ 1. RIS RS SEEIPERIE & S
knowledge.

2. The Company received from each of the Directors the confirmations on
taking continuous professional training.
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Company engaged SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as its
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration
paid/payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited is set out as
follows:

2 B 7 A

BE-B-—FH-A=+—BILEE &
DAZBEKFH (BB G MEH AR
REARHZBM - EFTREREERHTE

ZI BERRBREALEER L -

HE_ZT-_—F+_-_A=1+—BIFE XK
FE(ER) e EKERARMER,
N HMESI DT

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
R R B, e £ 35 B
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Audit services EZRTG 920
Non-audit services IEEIZ RS -
Total HEt 920
Acknowledgement of responsibility for FENBEHRRNETER
consolidated financial statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing E EHRABRESREARNHE_ZT - —F

the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors:

e assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group’s
financial performance, position, cashflows and liquidity
ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

e made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page
114 to page 120 of this annual report.
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Internal control

Risk management and internal control

The Board emphasises on the importance of risk management
and internal controls on the Group’s business operations and
development and acknowledges its overall responsibility for the
risk management and internal control systems and the review of
their effectiveness.

The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of
risks it is willing to accept, while achieving the Group’s strategic
business objectives. The Board also ensures implementation
and maintenance of effective risk management and internal
control systems; and oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board has delegated the responsibility to physically
implement and maintain the risk management and internal control
systems to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has implemented and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system, which aims to manage and reduce
(i) risks associated with the Group’s daily operations; (ii) risks
of failing to achieve business objectives; (iii) risks of asset
misappropriation; and (iv) risks of making potential material
misstatements or losses. However, the risk management and
internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.
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The process to identify, evaluate and manage risks are carried
out on a regular and on-going basis. These processes are
summarised as follows:

Risk identification

° Identify risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.

Risk assessment
e  Assess the impact and consequence of the identified risks
on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Response to findings of risk assessment

° Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk monitoring and reporting

° Perform ongoing and regular monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e Enhance the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

e Report the results and effectiveness of risk management
and internal control to the Board regularly.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group has implemented in information disclosure policy
to ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The policy is summarised as follows:

° Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

e  Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and
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° Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
engaged an independent internal control reviewer to review
the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
system. The scope of review was determined by the Board.
The independent internal control reviewer submitted a report
of findings and areas for improvement to the management.
The management presented these findings and areas for
improvements to the Board and Audit Committee. Having
considered (i) the existence of the risk management and internal
control system; (i) the findings of the independent internal control
reviewer; (i) management will take into account the areas for
improvement suggested by the independent internal control
reviewer and further enhance the risk management and internal
control system, the Board and Audit Committee were of the view
that the Group had no material internal control deficiencies and
its risk management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.

Company secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (“Ms. Jian”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 21 September 2019 and is
responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial matters
of the Group. In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing the functions of a company secretary. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Jian confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders of the Company holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisition(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
64 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out
above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, no person (other than
a retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office of the Company or at the Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company.
The period for lodgement of the notices required under this
Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.

Investors relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s head office.
The Company also maintains a website at www.sprocomm.com
where up-to-date information and updates of the Company’s
operations, performances and strategies are available to public
access.

Constitutional Documents

On 18 October 2019, the Company adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which had
been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been no changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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About the Report

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) presents the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) report, which contains
information on the Group’s business activities, ESG governance,
strategies and performances. This ESG report is intended to
enhance the confidence and understanding of the stakeholders
towards the Group.

About the Group

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
The Group operates two production bases in the PRC, including
one in Shenzhen that is responsible for the mobile phone
assembly and the other one in Luzhou that is equipped with SMT
lines for the production of PCBAs.

Reporting Period

This ESG report highlights the ESG performance of the Group
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Reporting Standard

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and Guidance set out by the Stock Exchange. An
assessment on the applicability and materiality of the relevant
key performance indicators under the ESG Reporting Guide had
been conducted.

Reporting Principles
The Group applied the following principles in this ESG Report:

e Materiality: Material and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in this ESG Report.
A materiality assessment was conducted to determine
material ESG issues with results reviewed and approved by
the Board.
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e  Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information
are disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is
provided with narrative and comparative figures, where
possible.

e  (Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in this ESG Report, unless otherwise
specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

° Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.

Reporting Scope

Based on the principle of materiality, the scope of this ESG report
concentrates on the Group’s business in the PRC, where the
Group carries out its principal business operations and most of
its employees and assets are located. All the PRC entities of the
Group were included in the assessment of ESG performance for
the purpose of this ESG report. The Group’s operations outside
the PRC were not included in the scope as they do not have
significant environmental and social impacts.

ESG Governance

The Group views ESG commitments as part of its responsibilities
and are committed to incorporating ESG considerations into its
decision-making process. To achieve this goal, the Group has
developed a framework to ensure ESG governance is aligned
with its strategic growth, while advocating for the integration
of ESG into its business operations. The structure of ESG
governance mainly comprised of two components, namely the
board of directors (the “Board”) and the management team.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting by overseeing the overall governance and
progress of the Group’s ESG management system, policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives.
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Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate strategies
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets
key performance indicators and compares the indicators of
current year with those of prior year. Based on the results of this
comparison, ESG reports and the feedback from stakeholders,
the Board reviews the progress made by the Group against its
ESG-related goals and targets. The relevance of ESG-related
goals and targets to the Group’s business operations are
determined by regular communications with stakeholders.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from
the relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management
and operation information collected by the Group. The Board has
reviewed the contents of this ESG report.

ESG Strategies

The Group believes that it is essential to implement appropriate
ESG strategies in order to achieve sustainable corporate
development. Key ESG strategies of the Group are set out below:

e  Maintain regular communications with stakeholders to
identify ESG aspects that are material and relevant

e Maintain high environmental and social standards to ensure
sustainable development of the Group’s business operations

e Comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
the Group’s business operations including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment

° Encourage employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social

activities that benefit the community as a whole

e Review the ESG strategies on an annual basis
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values the contributions from its stakeholders as they
can bring potential impacts to the Group’s business. The Group
maintains regular communications with its stakeholders from time
to collect their views on the ESG aspects that they regard as
relevant and important. Its key stakeholders include governments
and regulatory bodies, shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the public society. The Group maintains an open
and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders through various
channels including meetings, trade exhibitions, surveys, seminars
and workshops.

The following table summarises the main expectations and
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the
corresponding management responses.

KhESH
AEETHDERHEBBEEZENRNE
BR - AEETEMESNERR  TRHKER
ER/ERE HEREREBNERER -
AEENTERNERRBRTREE®E -
BR-BE TP HEBEKHEAR - KK
BEEe® BMERE #HE - TSR IE
hEZERE  BRNELFHEAN

TRBEASEAANEZFNHENETER
MBI AR EIREHEEREE -

Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
BHE FEH EEEOE BERE
Governments and regulatory bodies e  Compliance with laws and e  Compliance operation
B REEHE regulations o HHEE
o EBTEEER e Tax payment in full and on time
e Tax payment in accordance o IR FEMBL
with laws
o OEMT
Shareholders o Financial results e To improve profitability
A& ER e HMBEE o REARFBEN
e Corporate transparency ° Regular information disclosure
o {EFH s THEEER
e Sound risk control e To optimise risk management
o BEREEIRE and internal control
o E(LRMEIR KA
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
== e BEBRTA o ETTHH
e  Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
o HekEF benefits
e Safe working environment s AHBFINHFEKEERET

o RTEIFERER
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employees and strengthen their
safety awareness
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Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
=& " EEEEE BERE
Customers e Logistics and delivery service o To get delivery status through
LN standards product tracking system

o WIRKBLERISRLE

o Customer information
security

s ZEPERELE

e Customer rights and interests
protection

s XEFPERRE

Suppliers o Integrity cooperation
HEm e WMIEAE
e  Business ethics and
credibility

s HEERRKEE

Society and the public o Environmental protection
HEOR o IRIFRE

o Employment opportunities

e [ERE®E

ZE 43R Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
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Customer privacy protection
BERPLEBRE
Compliance marketing
BHE

To build a stable and responsible

supply chain
BUBERBEMMHER
To perform the contract
according to law
BEBITAH

To reduce environmental
pollutions

WA BRIR A

To put into use environmental
protection and energy saving
equipment
EARRENBE R

To provide equal employment
opportunities

REFERERES

29
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Materiality Assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, with reference to
the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting Guide and
taking into consideration of the Group’s business operations, the
Group identified the following environmental, social and operating
issues that are material and relevant to the Group’s business
operations. If the Group does not implement effective strategies
to monitor and solve these issues, these issues may affect the
Group’s financial condition or operating performance. Further, the
Group made a materiality assessment on these environmental,
social and operating issues by conducting interviews with its
stakeholders.

Environmental issues Social issues

EEMFME

BE_ T+ -_A=t—HILEFE K
SEZ2ERE HEREAMEEIIREN
BEMEEERBEE FPIATEAREZE
BHAMNERNRE HEaREEFRE - HAK
BN RRERAKBAERRBARAZESE
AIRREFHRAKE LRI EXENTE -
AEBEBIHRARKNE  E—-PHZFRR
HekEBREETTERMNE -

Operating issues

BRIRER HESE EESIE

1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
BERBHEN S R EENRBEEE

2. Energy consumption 9. Community investment 16. Corporate governance
BEIRH#E HERE TERER

3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety  17. Anti-corruption
KT B FE BEEREALZR RERE

4,  Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
&Y chain HrEEE R

HpEsEss TIRAE

5. Saving energy measures
B RE 5 bE 12.
[ g
6. Use of raw materials and

packaging materials 13. Employee welfare
R R B &M EHE B & B &R

7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection Hpps P Eg e

EBFIRRBRBERE
#
The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social

and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s
stakeholders and business operations.
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Training and development

19. Customer satisfaction

EFPmEE

20. Customer privacy
BEPLE

AEEZERNEREFEENEEREY
PERR - HEREERREANBLEER -
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Importance to the Group’s stakeholders and
business operations

HEKERDERREKELEENEREE

ESG issues
RE -HEREARBHE

High =
Medium $
Low &

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable
business development. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group experienced a global shortage of electronic
components (in particular mobile chips), which significantly
increased the costs of raw materials. In response to this situation,
the Group had more frequent communications with customers
to confirm sales orders, and also with suppliers to secure
the quantities of raw materials that can satisfy the needs of
customers. The Group was also actively souring new suppliers.
Please refer to the section headed “B.2 Operating practices — ()
Supply chain management” in this ESG report for further details
of the strategies implemented by the Group to ensure that the
Group’s supply chain system can meet its own requirements.

Contact Us

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of this
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development
to 5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building, Tianan Chegongmiao
Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen, China.

1,2,3,5,6,7,10,14,15,16,17,18, 19, 20
4,11,12,13
8,9

AEBBBREBEEEUETHERSITRERE
BB B RMEE R i BTE - EREKA
BEERRE - BE_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
IEFE AEBEB2REF L (FRIER
E)dm A ) MR EARARIEMN T RM R AIRAR o
BTEREZEN  AEEHERTEREMER -
LATERIEERTEE - RRREEREEITER U
BRIGEAREELPFRNEMBHEE -
REBETERS EIAHER - B2HRERE -
HERERARE (B2EETER — ((HEES
B8 UWTHEErEEABEREHLER
A mEEE G ERMEENKREBENES
FFIE ©

B 4% 3K
AEEBOFHERESERLRESZ . BTA
UBAREIAEEEAFBEER FENEK
BRESEER  SFEFRFYTEARE
KELZEBENE T ¥R K KNEF.6E5D-506 °
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Environment

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources.

The Group’s business operations are subject to certain
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC
such as Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({1 &
AR HEME R E R #5%)), Evaluation of Environmental
Effects Law of the PRC ({(FZE AR L FIBRIFF EFE
%)), Prevention and Control of Water Pollution Law of the
PRC ({4 ZE A R FE K55 25 78)%)), Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the PRC (" %
ANERELFB KRS 8%)), Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution Law of the PRC ({"/ ZE A
RHEFERIZREE)S 2 [547%)), Prevention and Control
of Solid Waste Pollution Law of the PRC ({ # A &
il BE W) )5 A IR B BH VA A) ), and Regulations on
the Administration of Construction Project Environmental
Protection (%18 B IRIZIREE I &H1)), and Promotion
of Cleaner Production Law of the PRC ({rr & A B 3 f1
BREEMRER).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
complied with all applicable PRC environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects and had not been
subject to any material penalty in relation to environmental
protection.

A.1 Emissions

During the Group’s production process, there are
certain wastage generated (sources of emissions)
including solid waste, water, noise and polluted air.
The Group has in place standard procedures to
manage, treat and reduce the pollution and wastage
in accordance with national and local requirements.
The Group also has in place facilities for air filtration
to ensure that the level of wastage or pollutants
generated during its production process is within
statutory limits. In addition, the Group has engaged a
professional waste disposal service company for the
disposal of hazardous wastes. To ensure compliance
with the latest environmental laws and regulations, the
Group has internal compliance manuals setting out its
goals and poalicies in relation to environmental matters.
The Group has been accredited with the ISO 14001
certification of environmental management system.
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() Air pollutant emissions () Z=RS5EVHER

During the year ended 31 December 2021, HE-_T-_—F+=ZA=*+—

air pollutant emissions were mainly related to HIEFE ZR5RDHERE

petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s ZHASBFERAEEAREM

self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the BEAHER B %9 R2F 5

emission of 9.92 kg (2020: 11.03 kg) of nitrogen RELHNOX) (ZE=TF:

oxides (NOx), 0.17 kg (2020: 0.22 kg) of sulphur 11.03F %) 017 F = H At
oxides (SOx) and 0.73 kg (2020: 0.81 kg) of PSOx) (ZE T4 :022F

respiratory suspended particles (PM). %) % 0.73 :Fﬁ BN s

PM)(ZE=FF:081F5n) °
(i) Greenhouse gas emissions (i) REREETEN
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
BE-2=-F BE-2C%F
tZB=t+-BL%E TZA=+-HLEE
Emission  Percentage to Emission  Percentage to
(intCO,e) total emission (intCO,e) total emission
PHEWE  (FAUHE  HBE(ME  HAERE

Scope of greenhouse gas emissions ~ BEREBHNEE < —GREE) BEal —&tREER) BAL

Scope 1 Direct emission EE1EEER

Combustion of petrol for mabile vehicles 52 5 it & 27152 1.8% 34.57 2.5%

Consumption of refrigerant IRHERE 90.50 92.31

Scope 2 Indirect emission HE2BEHK

Purchased electricity REE 6,417.26 95.2% 4,707.32 92.9%

Scope 3 Other indirect emission HESHMHEHER

Paper waste disposal BEREE 0.01 3.0% 0.01 4.6%

Water consumption FEK 32.82 37.51

Business alr travel BBRIT 173.37 195.96

Total st 6,741.48 100% 5,067.68 100%

Notes: et -

(1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix (1) BRIEZAEHA  GRIHERREY
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred 2ZFRETHRAUME -+ LR
documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless R RFTRELEXHETE °
stated otherwise.

(2)  The above emission data does not include the removal of (@) kot B AR B S B 1 B WA R EE

CO2 contributed by recycling of paper.

ER =&AL -
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During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group’s activities contributed to 6,741.48
tonnes (2020: 5,067.68 tonnes) or 0.1 tCO2/
m2 (2020: 0.1 tCO2/m2) of carbon dioxide
equivalent (carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide and hydrofluorocarbons) emission. The
increase in carbon dioxide equivalent emission
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
primarily attributed to the increase in electricity
consumption as the Group fully resumed its
business activities after the outbreak of novel
coronavirus. Details of the Group’s measures to
reduce the consumption of resources and the
related emissions are set out below. As a result
of these measures, the employees’ awareness
of reducing the consumption of resources and
the related emissions has been increased.
Same as the previous two years, the Group
did not receive any complaints or warnings on
greenhouse gas emissions during the year ended
31 December 2021, and targets to achieve the
same performance in 2022.

Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled 132,749 km
(2020: 147,591 km), which consumed 11,663
litres (2020: 14,650 litres) of petrol (11.73 litres
(2020: 9.2 litres) of petrol per employee) and
contributed to 27.52 tonnes (2020: 34.57 tonnes)
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions. To reduce
the emissions arising from petrol consumption,
the Group encourages its employees to use
public transport when they attend business
activities. For business activities that take place
within walking distance, the Group encourages
its employees to walk or cycle to the destination.
The Group targets that its petrol consumption in
2022 will not exceed the level consumed during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Refrigerant consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group consumed 50 kg (2020: 51 kg) of
refrigerant (0.05 kg (2020: 0.03 kg) per employee)
in connection with the use of air conditioning
during its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 90.50 tonnes (2020: 92.31
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from refrigerant
consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to switch off the air conditioning when
they leave the office and production premises.
The Group targets that its refrigerant consumption
in 2022 will not exceed the level consumed during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group consumed 7,130,284 kWh (2020:
5,230,352 kWh) of electricity (7,173 kWh (2020:
3,279 kWh) per employee) in connection with
its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 6,417.26 tonnes (2020:
4,707.32 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
electricity consumption, the Group encourages
its employees to switch off the lights and other
electricity appliances when they leave the office
and production premises. The Group targets that
its electricity consumption in 2022 will not exceed
the level consumed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

22 B HFE
HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—
HIEFE AEBEBRTFLE
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Paper consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group consumed 1.3 tonnes (2020: 1.3 tonnes)
of paper (0.001 tonnes (2020: 0.001 tonnes) per
employee) in connection with its daily business
operations, which contributed to 0.01 tonnes
(2020: 0.01 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising
from paper usage, the Group encourages its
employees to conserve paper, review documents
on computers, send messages to customers via
emails, use recycled paper and adopt double-
sided printing. The Group targets that its paper
consumption in 2022 will not exceed the level
consumed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group consumed 32,820 cubic metres (2020:
41,865 cubic metres) of water (33.0 cubic metres
(2020: 26.2 cubic metres) per employee) in
connection with its daily business operations,
which contributed to 32.82 tonnes (2020: 37.50
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
have increased their awareness to reduce
water consumption. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group did not encounter any
problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Further, the Group did not consume a significant
amount of water that was and disproportional to
the scale of its business operations. The Group
targets that its water consumption in 2022 will not
exceed the level consumed during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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(i)

Business air travel

The Group’s business nature requires employees
to travel by air to other countries for meetings with
customers and suppliers. They would only travel
by air when necessary and the Group keeps
track of their business air travels. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, business air travels of
the Group’s employees had contributed a total of
173.37 tonnes (2020: 195.96 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent emission.

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group generated minimal amount of hazardous
waste. The major hazardous waste generated by
the Group was waste light tube. To minimise the
impact on environment, the Group has engaged
a professional waste disposal service company
for the disposal of hazardous wastes. The Group
will strive to reduce generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous two years, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on disposal of its hazardous waste during the
year ended 31 December 2021, and targets to
achieve the same performance in 2022.

Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group generated a total of 1,550 tonnes (2020:
1,565 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (1.56
tonnes (2020: 0.98 tonnes) per employee). The
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group
were packaging materials generated from the
Group’s production process. The Group regularly
reminds its employees to use resources efficiently
and try to avoid the generation of waste. As
a result, the employees’ awareness of waste
management has been increased. Same as the
previous two years, the Group did not receive
any complaints or warnings on disposal of its
non-hazardous waste during the year ended 31
December 2021, and targets to achieve the same
performance in 2022.

(i)
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A.2 Use of resources

Reducing consumption of resources and enhancing
utilisation efficiency are the Group’s principles in
minimising adverse impact on the environment and
natural resources that may be caused by its business
operations. The Group has adopted a set of guidelines
to achieve efficient use of energy, water and other
resources for long-term sustainability.

The Group’s total consumption of resources during
the year ended 31 December 2021 together with the
relevant conservation measures adopted by the Group
are detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above.

A.3 The environment and natural resources

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
business activities did not cause significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources.

To further improve the use of resources, the Group
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis:

e  keep track of its consumption level of resources;

° review the effectiveness of its conservation
measures; and

e design improvement measures.

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.
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A.4 Climate change A4 RIRZ1E

The Group manages the climate change risk with
reference to the Recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD),
which contains four major components: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.
The Board overseas the governance and reporting of
the Group’s climate change risk.

Management of the Group regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations. Strategies will be
implemented on a timely manner to mitigate such risk.

Climate change is mainly caused by the release of
carbon dioxide into the atmosphere, resulting from
the use of fossil fuels for electricity generation and for
transportation. As mentioned above, the Group has
implemented appropriate strategies to use resources
more efficiently and reduce emissions to combat
climate change and reduce potential costs in the
future.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
identified the following climate-related risks that
may have material impacts on the Group’s business
operations:

Physical risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme
weather such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can
disrupt the Group’s operations by damaging the power
grid, and communication infrastructures, and injuring
its employees during their work, leading to reduced
capacity and decreased in productivity, or expose
the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential
risks and hazards, the Group has flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad
or extreme weather conditions.
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Transition risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent
climate legislations and regulations to support the
global vision of carbon neutrality. We acknowledge
the requirements to enhance the climate-related
information disclosures as a result of the recent update
of the ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant
climate-related impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also be adversely affected
by the failure to meet the compliance requirements for
climate change. The Group’s related capital investment
and compliance costs may increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging
trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and
be prepared to alert the Board where necessary to
avoid cost increments, penalties for non-compliance
and/or reputational risks due to delayed response.

B. Social

70

B.1 Employment and labour practices

(i) Employment

Total employees

The Group had 1,022 full-time employees in the
PRC as at 31 December 2021. The Group did not
have any part-time employees as at 31 December
2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group adjusted the number of staff according
to its actual business needs.
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Set forth below is the Group’s employee turnover LWTRHEHE-_Z-_—F+=A

rate by gender, age group and geographical —t+—HIEFERER - FiR

region during the year ended 31 December 2021: HEERESHAEBEE TR
KE:

Geographical location: The PRC iz

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z--—-+=-A=+—HLFE

Total by
Male Female age group
RE®RA
Turnover rate AR B zZ SRV
30 or below BOARE AT 67.6% 80.1% 72.9%
31-40 312405 68.5% 82.4% 741%
41-50 41 2= 507% 69.9% 102.8% 86.7%
Above 50 508 A £ 66.7% 28.6% 50.0%
Total by gender RMEBIFIR WA 68.1% 82.6%
Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s UWTREZEZ—F+=A
employees as at 31 December 2021 by gender =+ — BRI AMFEREE D
and age group: WAREEREE DM :
DISTRIBUTION OF DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY GENDER EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
RHERIE D NIEE DM RERBAESNEE D
Above 50

41-50 O
113505 SO
8%

Female
i
4% 30-41 30 or
Male 30%41 ﬁ below
FiE 43% 308K
56% BATR
48%
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Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working
in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18
years old. To ensure that job applicants can meet
the age requirement, identities of job applicants
are verified against their valid identity documents,
relevant permits and certificates.
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The human resources department is required
to carry out background checks to authenticate
information provided by job applicants and
is required to fill in forms that confirm hired
employees have met the age requirement. If
child labour or forced labour is discovered, such
matter will be reported to the human resources
department and the senior management and
the Group will enhance the internal controls
immediately. No material non-compliance
in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour was
recorded during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.
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(i)

(iv)

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.

Occupational health and safety data

(i)

EEREELT S

AEEIEBRERENIER
2 REERHZEMNIIER
BRIEZRE  UBREZ
LR TVE REB JNE T8k
NEBERAHE o LI K
SEEEERAEAEEEN
HMEILE2HE RHMA@EE
IEEHE  ETTHRSE - H
E-F_—F+=ZH=1+—H
IHFE AEBETEFEEM
ERLEEW TERERTESF
THELZEEERERMZEE

=5
El

HE-®=—F1=7
=+-ALESEEENRE

for the three years ended 31 December 2021 BREEZZHEERIRT

Work related fatality T%T -
Work injury cases >3 days AN EMTEER -
Work injury cases <=3 days SAKAAWHITEER -
Lost days due to work injury THEFEIRE -
Development and training (iv) ZRE&IE

The Group provides comprehensive training
and development opportunities to its employees
on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged
according to needs of employees, which were
identified annually by individual departments:

a. Orientation training — To familiarise
employees with the Group’s objectives,
culture, rules and regulations, safety and
product-related knowledge on the first day
of work;
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Pre-job training — To familiarise new
employees or transferred employees with
their new duties;

On-the-job training — To ensure that the
employees are familiar with the Group’s
products, to sharpen the sales technique
and customer service standard of sales
and marketing personnel and to ensure the
production and quality control personnel
perform proper quality control procedures.

Set forth below is the number and
percentage of training hours completed
by the Group’s employees by gender and
employee category for the year ended 31
December 2021:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z--F+-A=+—-HLEE

e B 35 3l — 15 D) B B 3K
EEESNETEBE

FE B % ) — HE R 1R B AR
AEBEMER RITHEE
REHABMHEERTTR
EERGZE  BREE
FEREANBZERTERE
R e

WTREE-_F = —
+-A=+t—BLtFE"
rEBERBIZER MES
¥ Bl BT 5E A B9 35 9| B B
Bt

% of training

hours by
employee
category
ZESER
Employee category Male Female Total Bomz
EEER Bt prg 3 &5t BENADL
Training hours Training hours Training hours
XAl 2 R 53
Senior management 46 - 46 0.4%
BRERE
Middle management 552 373 925 7.7%
HRERE
Other employees 5,992 5,036 11,028 91.9%
Hithig &
Total 6,590 5,409 11,999 100.0%
@t
% of training hours 54.9% 45.1% 100.0%
by gender
BRI B D Z I
RENEDL
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B.2 Operating practices

U)
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Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality
management and also ESG performances) before
the Group enters into contract with the qualified
suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would also
consider whether they are energy efficient and
environmental friendly. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group principally sourced
its major raw materials (including PCBAs, display
modules, camera modules and mobile chips) and
equipment from PRC suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
geographical locations of the Group’s suppliers of

raw materials and equipment were as follows:

Geographical locations of the

B2 EEHER

M

e g e I

AEEERB FFRARME
BHRERE EERRER
BoBE ERRERZIMNE
MRERMHERE - ZEE
REEERI LA QA NEE
SHBTRAEEEATEEE
REER (EREMMS - Em
ERCEEETR HEEREIN
RIE e hBRRR) -

TEERER AEETEE
ERBREGHERERR HZE
—E-—-F+-HA=+—81t
FE AEENZZERVHE (2
R EBR - B EE
BHEERERBENS) ME&E
FERBEREMERD -

ALIEFE NEB R R&
BE R ERE 2 B BN T

Number of suppliers

Group’s suppliers AEBHEFNEMNE HEREE
The PRC i 609
Hong Kong BB 102
Total a5t 71
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The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure
that the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to
market rate and location of their factories) and
continuously monitors existing suppliers on an
annual basis, based on criteria such as product
quality, product defect ratio, delivery punctuality
ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.
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(i)

Product responsibility
Product assurance and recall

Product quality is crucial to the Group’s
continued success. The Group places strong
emphasis on achieving a consistently high quality
for its products. To achieve such purpose,
stringent quality control measures throughout
the production process were implemented to
ensure the quality and safety of our products.
The Group’s quality control department performs
regular inspections to evaluate the effectiveness
of the quality control measures and further
enhance these measures when necessary.

The Group’s quality management system has
complied with the standard of GB/T 19001-2016/
ISO9001:2015 Quality Management Systems
Requirements and awarded a certificate for
the design, development, production and
services of communication products, including
exportable mobile phone, on 18 January 2019,
which remains valid until 16 January 2025.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group did not experience any claims, litigations
and arbitrations or material adverse findings in
inspection by government authorities with respect
to product quality.

The Group only accepts product returns if
there is manufacture or design defect or the
product specification deviates from customers’
specifications During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group did not experience
any product recall, material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to product
safety nor receive any material complaints from
consumers.
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(i)

Intellectual property rights and information
security

As a mobile phone supplier with strong design
capability, the Group registers patents to
safeguard the technologies and mobile phone
applications developed by the research and
development department time to time. The Group
relies on the relevant laws and regulations to
protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties; or (i) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.

Anti-corruption

According to the Group’s anti-corruption policy, all
employees shall abide by the laws and regulations
of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of
ethics, advocate fair competition and act against
bribery. Any bribery, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any
improper benefits including banquets, gifts,
securities, valuables and high-expenditure
entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any
alleged case in violation of laws, regulations,
code of conduct or Group’s policies, the Group
will investigate and impose disciplinary actions
upon offenders after verification. The Group also
provides trainings to directors and employees
from time to time to ensure that they comply and
familiar with the anti-corruption guides, policies
and procedures of the Group.

(i)
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During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group spent reasonable amount
of time and resources on environmental protection
as well as cultural and sport promotion. The Group
encouraged its employees to participate charitable
events. Going forward, the Group will continue to focus
on community needs and increase its investment in
community.
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The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HBES

A

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited #H&KkE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHR EBEE —REER
BRERER

Description

it

-

N
/|

N/

K

Relevant section in the ESG
report/DecIaration

ZHARDIFANRE
ARERESINBTRSIR

R HERERBRENAER

Z26 80

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

EEIRERE
Governance Structure

E/I:I;JIE%

Reporting Principles
HERR

A statement from the board containing the
following elements:

MEFSHLNER EFHBETIAR

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of
ESG issues;
BEEETHRE HekERAEH
SEEE

(i) the board’s ESG management approach
and strategy, including the process
used to evaluate, prioritise and manage
material ESG-related issues (including
risks to the issuer’s businesses); and
BEEENRE HERERBEAH
REm - B BRI RERE
BEMRR HGERECHBEE
(BREHHEITAEBRER) /BIR
K

(i)  how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets
with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses.
EEGNMIRERE g RERIAH
B mal T - WERE T I a0 fa] 82 88
TAERBEBEE

A description of, or an explanation on, the
application of the reporting principles in the
preparation of the ESG Report.

Wl BBEERERRE L2 RERRE
i 40 o] FE FAEE SRR A

ESG GOVERNANCE
RE - g RERAE

ESG STRATEGIES

STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT
RihESR

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
HERA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration
TEHRE - EBEE —REER #HA RE HERERBENIER
FAREARER EH8 B9
Reporting Boundary
s

A narrative explaining the reporting REPORTING SCOPE

boundaries of the ESG report and describing 3 2 &3 &
the process used to identify which entities or

operations are included in the ESG report.

If there is a change in the scope, the issuer

should explain the difference and reason for

the change.

RERE e RERENERSEE

R PhE L B B Sk M AIRIE » 4T

g REBIMENRIE <5 EREE G PrE
BITAEBREIARZEREFHRA -

Aspect Al: Emissions

EBEA: BEHY
General Disclosure Information on: A. ENVIRONMENT
— M= ERABRIMAEREBEM  FKRTHE  IRE

5  EENEEEERVNELSTHN

(@ the policies; and

BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and nonhazardous waste.
BTHBETABEAZENHEBEE
KRG E R o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE BH  —REER

Description

#

o

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

R HERERBRENEER

BRERER EH8 B9
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective A.1 Emissions
AR A BIEE AL emissions data. PE

KPI A1.2
BB EBIEIZA1.2

KPI A1.3

RSB MUEIRALS

KPI A1.4

RSB MUIEIRALL

KPIA1.5
RABEUIEIRALS

KPI A1.6
AR EBIEIZA1.6

Bt 28 R ARBE BRI BUR -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)

and intensity.

BERBEBINE AN E) REBE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

and intensity.

ELBEEEMRE (UMFTE) MBE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in

tonnes) and intensity.

ELEZEEWAE (UMFTE) hTE -

Description of reduction initiatives and results

achieved.

fdUR R EE M E MR LT ERR -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEERBEEEEYMNT L
BIEEESNEBRAMEHIR -

A.1 Emissions —
(i) Greenhouse gas emissions
AT BERR— (i) B E R B

A.1 Emissions —

(i) Hazardous waste

(Not applicable — Explained)
A BER— (i) B EEEY)
(NER -2 #E)

A.1 Emissions —
(iv) Non-hazardous waste

A HER —(v) EEEREY)

A.1 Emissions

A1 HER

A.1 Emissions —

(i) Hazardous waste
AT —(iVEZED
A.1 Emissions —

(iv) Non-hazardous waste

ATEER— (VW EZEED
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RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration
TEHRE - EBEE —REER #HA RE HERERBENIER

BEARIER -0 2

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, A.2 Use of resources
— M= including energy, water and other raw A& R{E
materials.
BEREREIR (BEER - KREMEMED
HIBR °
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by A.1 Emissions
R B IR A2.1 type in total and intensity. A1 BERR
RENEDNEZER LHEERERES
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A.1 Emissions -
FREBIEFEA2.2 BEXKERTE - (i) Greenhouse gas emissions —

Water consumption
ATBER— ()R E R BTN —

AKX
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives  A.1 Emissions
FREBIEFEA2.3 and results achieved. ATHERR
fEt BE IR AR ET B RPTIS R ©
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in A.1 Emissions —
AR IETUEIZEA2.4 sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water (i) Greenhouse gas emissions —
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Water consumption
et SRERGE AR 7KOR BRI B R RE ATEERR— ()R EREBHE—
AR RKS =TS RAEXR - AKX
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished A.1 Emissions —
R EEIEIZEA2.5 products (in tonnes). (iv) Non-hazardous waste

HRMAABEMHNEE UAMGETE) - ATEER—(vEEEY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER

BEARIER

Description

=

R

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

R HERERBRENEER

-0 2

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEAS: RERXRER
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI A3.1
A AE MBI AS.1

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAL : RIREt

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

KPI A4.1
REIE B BB IZ A4 .1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

AR T AB BRI R KRR EREK
BATENBEK -

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

HIEBEBHIRIERRAERN
BEAREREEREEEHETENITE -

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer.

Bl R EHE KRR HETA
EEXENERREBEBEENHBE -

Description of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted and/or may
impact the issuer and the actions taken to
manage them.

FHABTEM WA ERTANEX
RARAERARE RE - DA N AR R R 55 L A RE T £R
HBE178) °

A.3 The environment and natural

resources
ABRENRBAER

A.3 The environment and
natural resources

ABRRENBARER

A.4 Climate change
A4 RIRE L

A.4 Climate change
A4RIREL
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER
BRERER

Description

[res
B
=

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=a:i g1

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EE

General Disclosure
—RERE

KPI B1.1
FAR A ISR B

KPIB1.2
RSB EIEIRB1.2

86

Information on:

ERATHNRFE BERSA  TIERE -
RES - FEHE 2ot REKRURE
fth i AR Y

(@ the policies; and

BE R

compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
BIFHBITABERZENHBERE
KIROIE) &K o

Total workforce by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIS FRARN RS DNEE RS -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

MR Fheil R MR &5 E B IRAK
PER o

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2021

B.1 Employment and labour
practices
BlERKABEIHER

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment —
Total employees
BlEBRSEIER—
()VERE— B8

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment —
Total employees
BlEBRSEIER—

)V ERE— 12288
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER
BRERER

Description

o
B
=

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=a:i g1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EBEB2: #RHEZE
General Disclosure

—RiRE

KPI B2.1
R B IE1EB2.1

KPIB2.2
RRENIEREB2.2

KPI B2.3
RABAIEIRB2.3

Information on:

ERRELTE THERERRERESE 2B
RUBED

(@ the policies; and

BE R

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BTHBETABEAZENEBEE
KRG E R o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
B TR R T M0 A B R L K o

Lost days due to work injury.
THERIKRE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BTRRERLZE2EM  AROAITRE
Bt EEER A o

ZE =43 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employee health
and safety

B.1EE &4 T H R — (i) /& B i&
FREZZ

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employee health
and safety
Bl1EMEEIER—(i)EER
BRHEZE

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employee health
and safety
BlEBASELER—

(i) EEREMZE

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employee health
and safety

B1ERRS IER—(i)ES 2
BMZE
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER
BRERER

Description

=

R

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=a:i g1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EBmEBS3: #ERKEI
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B3.1
A 4E 515 B3

KPIB3.2
FAR A M 515 B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : 5T E|

General Disclosure

—RiRE

88

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
FHRARTEE BT LIEBE N ME LA
BV o I FIEE) o

Percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category.
BURRESRMNESHXIEEB DL

Average training hours completed by gender
and employee category.
BMFIREEBERNED  BREETKE
L ERZEE 6

Information on:

BRAGIEET S EHSTH

(@ the policies; and

BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
BTHETABERZENREREZE
KRBV E R
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B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and

training
BAEBRSEIER—(v)ERN
b=l

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and
training
B1EBEZIEHR—(vERR

F ol

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and
training
BAEMERALEIEHR—(vERER

=l

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

BAEMKERE TER—()ERE
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration
TEHE EBEE —REER #HH RE HERERBENIER
BRERER EH8 B9

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review B.1 Employment and labour

7 #1845 WU 1R B4.1

KPI B4.2
PR 4B M 515 B4.2

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
?”ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@%%%muﬂ%ilﬁﬁ
HET o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

A B IR AR IF SR H R B BR B S PTER
EXEY 28R

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BEBS5: HERER
General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI B5.1
A AE M FE15 B

KPI B5.2
BRI UIEIEB5.2

KPI B5.3
RS AR 515 B5.3

KPI B5.4
PR A 515 B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRR T GRARBUR -
Geographical locations of major suppliers.
FEHEFMMIBLAE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers.

A RARS A L e 18 Bl

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

it 5 A 5 ) 4 9 19 (B BR B ) IR IR S AL
SRBREEH - LARBBEMITRERFE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

L BRE B R 2 2 AIRIRE m &
RRISEVIE A - A RABBAMITREERFIA °

—m—

==

FFHK Sprocomm Intelligence Limited

practices —

BlEBEEIEN—

(i) Employment
() = 1%

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

BAERBARE TER ()RR

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2RE TR —() e R

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 &M —() e

B.2 Operating practices —
() Supply chain management

B2@E&EER —()HEEEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2REEFER—() e EE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2& & F AR — () regEEs
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RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHRE - EBEE —REER #HA
BRERER

=

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=a:i g1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Information on:
— M= EEMERERMRBHRERZS BE -

SHLAREEURBRITED

(@ the policies; and

BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of

redress.
BTHBETABEAZENHEREE
KRG E R o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
RAIR B 512 B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

EEXRDEXERABETER 2 RERFE
H i B W H B 9 L o

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related

A 4ENIEIEBG.2 complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BEBNER KRB FEE U R EY
i~

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing

B A B 12 B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights.

ot B A N R AR E S R IE D -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and
RS WIE1EB6.4 recall procedures.
i E S RTEREREREIYIZT
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B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2 BHR—(\EmEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2E&EEHR—(\ERMEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2EEEHR —(\EMELE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2EEER—(\EREMT

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2EEEH—(VEMET
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER
BRERER

Description

B
=

H

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

R HERERBRENEER

-0 2

KPI B6.5
RS A 515 B6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: RES

General Disclosure
—MRiRE

KPI B7.1
FAR A ISR BT A

KPI B7.2
RASAE M IE1R BT .2

KPI B7.3
AR B BUIEIZEBT.3

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored

U B & ERMRE ALK - LA R4
BT REESR % o

Information on:

BRAM LR - R - MGFROTRER

(@ the policies; and
W K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
EBTHETARBEARENEBER
KR BIEE RS o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RBERRNEETASIEEERBTESR
BRESHFAEGOEE RFRER -

Description of preventive measures and how
they are implemented and monitored.
Ly &5 45 bt S BB IRAR T - LA MBI TT
NEERITE -

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HmEERE I RHNRERE -

B.2 Operating practices —
(iv) Data protection and privacy
policy

B2 R & HE R —(v) B FHR & KA

RHR

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
B2REER (I RERB

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Anti-corruption
B2REER (I RERB

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
B2REER (i) RERF

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
B2iELER (i) RER
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RE - HERERRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHRE - EBEE —REER #HA
BRERER

=

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=a:i g1

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EBEBS: HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to
—RERE understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BB RBER T BT NS BRI
EFEEMEREERESHGERIMEFNER

HBRER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
B8 2 45 TIE1E B8.1 environmental concerns, labour needs,

health, culture, sport).
HIEREE (PINHE  RIERHE -
BIFER @F- Xk 85) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed

R IEIBIZEBS.2 (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
EEIBEMBBER (NS ERER) -
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B.3 Community investment

B3t @&

B.3 Community investment

B3t E

B.3 Community investment
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHEE

The directors present to the shareholders the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management and Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report”, “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” and “Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

Principal risk factors and uncertainties

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

Rapid technological changes

The Group operates in the mobile phone industry characterised
by rapid technological changes with short product life cycle, and
the Group may not be able to maintain its revenue growth and
any delay by us in rolling out new and competitive mobile phones
will adversely affect its financial performance.

Thin net profit margin

The Group has a relatively thin net profit margin and hence are
highly sensitive to any unfavorable change in the cost of sales,
selling price and sales volume.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect its business operations and financial
conditions.

EEOREREHE ST -_—F+ A
Zt+—HIEFENTFRECEXRGETHRE -

FER®

AREE SRR+ B & ODM F# A e
TEWNETE R RERHEETFTH TR
MEIRIERRAR LB REEER T2
HRAFETE - ARBEEWB R ANFIT
BN AWM RRMFES9

) JE) -
AEBHE T -_—F+_A=+—HIHF
EREBLBHNAFERIEFERE] - [EE
EBimkotv] [EEEARE] [IRE
SRERREIRIPBHME|KE -

FTERAREERTHRERER
TXBRIAEBEBEEARNEEARR
THRERE

B A E 2R E
AEERFHEREE  TREMHERMEZR

® o EmEmANE o AEBE R BEEEERFK
aERABRMARELEHRABRFNOFH
B R A TR S H B RFER TN E -

AR R%E
AEBENMNRBEWE - FUHHERAE
HEBRLHEENEA TN CEIER X -

BF %
AEEFEEPETNBEARKREBZETE
BB E R 30 5k AT B H I B0 SRR AR
LRI BRI ERE RN TNZE -
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Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials may affect the Group’s
cost of sales and adversely affect its business operations and
profitability.

Future prospect and development

The Group’s business growth is expected to be driven by (i) the
huge population and the increasing disposable income of the
Group’s target sales locations; (ii) increasing demand for loT
products; and (i) the roll-out of 5G telecommunication network.
In order to capture the potential market opportunities, the
Group will continue to expand its production capacity, enhance
its research and development capability, enrich its product
portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to diversify its
geographical locations.

Major suppliers and customers

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
23.6% and 54.3% (2020: 23.4% and 49.2%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

On the other hand, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier
and the five largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December
2021 accounted for approximately 10.0% and 23.7% (2020:
15.2% and 48.5%) of the total purchases, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Key relationships with employees,
customers and suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers is critical to the Group’s business success. The Group
creates a decent working environment for its employees, where
they can work comfortably and achieve a work life balance. The
Group rewards its employees based on their performance and
also provides training to enhance their skills and knowledge. No
strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the reporting period under review.
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LR TR 2

ARAIERER
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YIE AR T SR BT ¢ T (i) #E ) 5GREN A4 o
RIBRETTISERE  NEEKEEERER:E -
AR  EEERAS  MBEERE
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FEHERREF
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The Group believes that it is important to listen to customers’
needs and feedbacks on its products in order to maintain
sustainable relationship with customers. The Group collects such
information from various channels and performs detailed analysis
on how to improve existing products and develop new products
that would satisfy its customers.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2021, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group. The Group also complied with () the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance; and (i) the
ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of its
employees.

Business activities in countries subject to
international sanctions

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group did not sell any products to countries that are subject
to international sanctions. The Group would not enter into any
transactions to finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly, activities
or business with, or for the benefit of, the countries subject to
international sanctions or sanctioned persons where this would
be in breach of the international sanctions.

The Directors believe that the Group has a reasonably adequate
and effective internal control framework to continue to assist the
Group in identifying and monitoring any material risk relating to
international sanctions laws so as to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

AEERR RREEFHEMNTERRER
NmEEFPFNRABEREEEE - A5 H
EBRBREER FHAITNAKZR

BEMMAZHEZIEFPANE® -

AEBREEHELTIEEE UERAS

BmEREPEX - RE‘BF?%‘E%{’E  FEIRIRAE
FERBBEAR A FEMALE

B EERZER

BE T —F+-_A=+—BItFE  #®E
EM AEERETHAERFERATE

— MR R RER - AEE BN (B
EATIED - T RAITES RS (8
SRMEHA)) EHEEEN RO EERN
SR R () A RIB R 2 150 - LIRS B
s -

REZERFHNBERERNER
EE
BHE_ZT-_—FRhZTE_TF+_H=+—
HIEFE  NEBBER BRSO X
HEFMNER AEEBASILEANGgER
BIRHIHNRS  NEEIEZEEBRERK
ZEESIHERKIZHEATHABOEE K
EBAAZERHEHBERIEZHEHALHF
mFRARREENHE -

ESRAR AKBRBOEREEERNNA

EB 4 HIAE R TT%i=T$Hﬂ$’§IEE%EJ&EtTI
HEERFSEZARNEARR  REARQ

KB R M) f R o

ZE 43R Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 95



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERESE

Environmental policy and social
responsibility

The Group understands the importance of environmental
sustainability and protection and has adopted policies on
pollution prevention, preservation of natural resources and
adherence to environmental laws and regulations. Please refer to
the ESG Report on pages 55 to 92 for details of the Group’s ESG
performance.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on page 121. The
directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Closure of the register of members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 26 May 2022 (Thursday), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 23 May 2022 (Monday) to 26 May
2022 (Thursday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 20 May
2022 (Friday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 20 May
2022 (Friday).

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed
securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

Reserves and distributable reserves

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this annual report. The
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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Charitable donations

The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB nil).

Management contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Chengjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xiong Bin (Vice-chairman)

Mr. Li Hongxing (resigned on 1 June 2021)

Mr. Guo Qinglin

Mr. Wen Chuanchuan (appointed on 1 June 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Wai Man

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen

Ms. Tseng Chin |

In accordance with article 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
at the general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office.
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In accordance with article 113 of the Company’s articles of
association, the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that the number
of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number
determined from time to time by the shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under this
article shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation as required by
the Company’s articles of association, and the code provisions of
CG Code.

In accordance with 109(a) and 113 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Wen Chuanchuan, Mr. Xiong Bin, Mr. Hung
Wai Man and Ms. Tseng Chin | will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 23 to 31 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Emoluments of directors and senior
management and five highest paid
individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management and the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report. The remuneration of the senior management
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 falls within
the following band:

Remuneration band

EE SREEAEBRBERESH
ATHEN =

AEEEEZ mAEEABRAEESHA
THMEFHBEHRAFRES M B REMN T
12 HE-_ZE-—F+-_A=+—8HILFE"
AEBEREEAENMEN TUTEHE :

Number of senior management

B & &5 [E SREEAEBHE
Up to RMB1,000,000 4

A% AR 1,000,000 70

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date, until terminated by enter party giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on Listing Date, until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands) which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
As of the date of this annual report, such insurance coverage is
currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2021, interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
are as follows:

BAESFIRERY

BEAQRMHERMA  SEFT (NS
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Interest in the Company RAEQAR ZER
Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held RERBEFR
EEnR B, HRME BREE BatE
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(Btat1) (BE49)
Mr. Li Chengjun (“Mr. Li”) (Note 2) Founder of a discretionary trust 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%

FERERE(EEE]D) (Hit2) RREEFRIPA

Mr. Xiong Bin (“Mr. Xiong”) (Note 3) Founder of a discretionary trust 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%

R SR (TRRSE&E D) (W72 3) 2REFAIMA
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Notes:
Ri The letter “L.” denotes long position of the shares.

vl Leap Elite Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Li for the benefit of
the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly, Mr. Li is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leap Elite Limited pursuant to
the SFO.

3. Beyond Innovation Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Xiong for the
benefit of the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly,
Mr. Xiong is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Beyond
Innovation Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had registered any interests or short positions
in any shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the
Company or any associated corporations as at 31 December
2021, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.

Arrangement for directors to purchase
shares or debentures

Saved as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director of the Company or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial shareholders’ and others’
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2021,
the following corporation/persons (other than the interests of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or

FTERRRHEMATRERTR
B RAEBER G T REE RS 594
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/

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company 336 {§&7B1F & By &2
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name Capacity/nature of interest shares held RELBEFER
= 5 RRME FREAE Bk
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(Kizt1) (##7)
Leap Elite Limited Beneficial owner 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%
SBARAA Bk
Beyond Innovation Limited Beneficial owner 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%
bR N /NC] Bt
Ms. Sui Rongmei (Note 2) Interest of spouse 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%
FEeig 2+ (Hat2) BB R
Ms. Yan Xue (Note 3) Interest of spouse 305,082,256 (L) 30.5%
BEZt (Hit3) B B &
JZ Capital Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner 75,000,540 (L) 7.5%
JZ Capital Limited (#7i£4) EmEn
Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 75,000,540 (L) 7.5%
SEFRES A (Mt 4) REEE R
Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese (Note 5) Interest of spouse 75,000,540 (L) 7.5%

RokfgE L (H:25)

Fo Bt as
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Notes:
il The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares.

vl Ms. Sui Rongmei is the spouse of Mr. Li Chengjun. By virtue of the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Li
Chengjun.

3. Ms. Yan Xue is the spouse of Mr. Xiong Bin. By virtue of the SFO, she is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Xiong
Bin.

4. JZ Capital is owned as to 99% by Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As such, Mr. Ko
Hin Ting, James is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by JZ Capital
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

5. Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is the spouse of Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As
such, Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares in which Mr, Ko Hin Ting, James is interested pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or
short positions in the issued share capital of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during
or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
interest in competing business

Apart from the Group’s business, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders (including Mr. Li, Leap Elite Limited, Mr.
Xiong and Beyond Innovation Limited) or any of their respective
close associates was engaged in or had any interest in any
business that competes or may compete with the principal
business of the Group, which would require disclosure under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules. or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report.
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Share option scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 18 October 2019 (the “Adoption
Date”), which become effective on the Listing Date. The purpose
of which is to motivate the eligible participants to optimise their
future contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain
on-going relationships with such participants who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, directors, advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 100,000,000 shares)
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company. Such limit
also represented 10% of the of the total issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and shall be at least highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date. As
at 31 December 2021, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was approximately seven years and 9.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the paragraph headed “Statutory and
General Information — Other Information — 1. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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EEEWRESE
() Outstanding options () HERITEREERE
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company HE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE"
did not grant any share options and no share options were RAARBERLERE HEERER
exercised and 38,400,000 share options were lapsed. 771 - H.38,400,00010 BERRIEE K - —
Details of the Company’s share options from 1 January T - —F—A—BE=-ZE=-_—F+=H8
2021 to 31 December 2021 are as follows: =+ —HHARRGIEIRERNFEEERSI AT -
Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
asat share share share share asat
Date of Exercise Vesting Exercise 1 January options options options options 31 December
grant price  period period 2021 transferred granted  exercised lapsed 2021
R=B=-%
RZB=-F =
-F-8 CEE  EREE BAEE  BXYE  =1-B
b=k fikE BEH %8 HATE  REBE  REME  REHE  REHE  HAGR
Category 1: Directors
A1 EZ
Mr. Li Hongxing
TURRE
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 2021 to 2,700,000 - - - (2,700,000 -
June 2021 13 April 2025
g4 42 05137 —E=% Ik Sab
mATEA mATRAZ tA-RZE
“E--F “ECR%
~AZTH mA+=A
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 2022 to 2,700,000 - - - (2,700,000 -
June 2022 13 April 2025
28 5% 05137 —E=% i S
MATEA mATRAZ tA-RZE
“5-C S 2
~AZTH mA+=A
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 2023 to 3,600,000 - - - (3,600,000) -
June 2023 13 April 2025
=4 E°% 05137 —5-% i S
mATEA mATRAZ tA-RZE
“5-=F kS 2
~AZTH MAt=A
Subtota Nt 9,000,000 = - - 9,000,000) <
Mr. Guo Qinglin
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Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
asat share share share share asat
Date of Exercise Vesting Exercise 1 January options options options options 31 December
grant price period period 2021 transferred granted  exercised lapsed 2021
R=B=-%
RZBz-% =
-fA-A CEE  EREE BAEE  BX¥E  =t-B
b=k ke BEH figid] HATE  REHE  REHE  REHE  REEE  HAGR
DEMEE
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 Juy 2021 to 1,050,000 - - - (1,060,000) -
June 2021 13 April 2025
£-8 Z3C%% 05181 —3-%% 5%
MATEA NA+mEE tA-RZE
“RI-F ZZoRE
~AZTH mA+=H
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 20220 1,050,000 - - - (1,060,000) -
June 2022 13 April 2025
£-4 ZZIRE 0511 —2=%F ZRoCE
MATEA NA+mEE tA-RZE
“ECCF S
~AZTH MmA+=H
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 2023 to 1,400,000 - - - (1,400,000) -
June 2023 13 April 2025
£258 kS 2 05181 -3-%% “E-CE
MATEA NA+mEE tA-RZE
Z3Ic% “Ionf
~AZTH mA+=H
Subtotal It 3,500,000 - - - (3,500,000) -
Mr. WEN Chuanchuan
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Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
asat share share share share asat
Date of Exercise Vesting Exercise 1 January options options options options 31 December
grant price period period 2021 transferred granted  exercised lapsed 2021
R=B=-%
RZBz-% =
-fA-A CEE  EREE BAEE  BX¥E  =t-B
b=k ke BEH figid] HATE  REBE  RE®E  REHE  REHE  HAGR
ABNEE
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 202010 1 July 2021 to - 1,060,000 - - (1,060,000) -
30 June 2021 13 April 2025
£-8 Z3C%% 05181 —3-%% 5%
MATEA MAtmEZE=  tA-HZ
2ok ZZoRE
~AZTH A+=H
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 202010 1 July 2022 to - 1,060,000 - - (1,060,000) -
30 June 2022 13 April 2025
£-4 ZZIRE 0511 —2=%F ZRoCE
MATEA MAtmEZE=  tA-HZ
2ok ZZoRE
~AZTH A+=H
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 202010 1 July 2023 to - 1,400,000 - - (1,400,000) -
30 June 2023 13 Aprit 2025
£258 kS 2 05181 -3-%% “E-CE
MATEA MAtmEZE=  tA-HEZ
S ZZoRE
~AZTH A+=H
Subtotal It - 3,500,000 - - (3,500,000) -

Category 2: Employees

ZE 43R Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 109



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEWRESE
Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
asat share share share share asat
Date of Exercise Vesting Exercise 1 January options options options options 31 December
grant price period period 2021 transferred granted  exercised lapsed 2021
R=B=-%
RZBz-% =
-fA-A CEE  EREE BAEE  BX¥E  =t-B
b=k ke BEH figid] HATE  REBE  RE®E  REHE  REHE  HAGR
BR2: g
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 Juy 2021 to 15,990,000 (1,050,000 - - (67200000 8,220,000
June 2021 13 April 2025
£-8 Z3C%% 05181 —3-%% 5%
MATEA NA+mEE tA-RZE
“RI-F ZZoRE
~AZTH A+=H
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 20220 15,990,000 (1,050,000 - - (67200000 8,220,000
June 2022 13 April 2025
£-4 ZZIRE 0511 —2=%F ZRoCE
MATEA NA+mEE tA-RZE
“ECCF S
~AZTH A+=H
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HKS0.51 14 Aprl 20201030 1 July 2023 to 21,320,000 (1,400,000) - - (8960,000) 10,960,000
June 2023 13 April 2025
£258 kS 2 05181 -3-%% “E-CE
MATEA MAtmEZE=  tA-HEZ
S ZZoRE
~AZTH A+=H
Subtotal It 53,300,000 (3,500,000) - - (22,400,000) 27,400,000
Total @ 65,800,000 - - - (38,400,000) 27,400,000

As at the date of this annual report, the number of shares
of the Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme upon the exercise of all above outstanding share
options was 27,400,000, representing 2.74% of the total

issued shares of the Company.
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(ii) Valuation of share options

(i) BRENMEE

mE RS X
Expected dividend yield
FAETIR B X

(1) The following significant assumptions were used to (1) ZEBREZAFEDERA-_EAH
derive the fair value of the share options using the BEEENX UFEATIEZRE
Binominal Options pricing model: 5

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3

£—H £ E=H

Date of grant 14 April 2020 14 April 2020 14 April 2020

=R —E-FF —T-EF —T-EF

MA+mA /MA+mA /MA+mAE

Fair value at grant date HK$0.211 HK$0.220 HK$0.227

REHBEATE 0.21138 T 0.22078 7T 0.227 % 7T

Share price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51

P& (B 0.517% 7T 0.5187T 0.51 7%

Exercise price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51

1T1EE 0.517% 7L 0.51%87T 0.51 % 7T

Expected volatility 53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
& B R 0

Expected life 5 years 5 years 5 years

FEETFHA 5% 5% 54

Exercise period 1 July 2021 to 1 July 2022 to 1 July 2023 to

13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025

1710 HA —T-—F —TCCF —E=F

tHA—RZE tHA—RZ tHA—RAZ%

—E-RF —“E-RHF —“E-RF

MA+=H MA+=H MA+=H

Risk-free rate 0.58% 0.58% 0.60%
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(2) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies
with businesses similar to the Group. The expected
dividend yield is determined by the directors based on
the expected future performance and dividend policy
of the Group.

(8) No share-based payment expense was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil) in
relation to share options granted by the Company as
the performance condition was not satisfied.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not
entered into or conducted any connected transactions, which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as required under the
Listing Rules.

Related party transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions are connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Corporate governance practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Equity-linked agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of
the issued shares for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report.

Review of audited annual results

The Company’s audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors of listed issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they
have compiled with the required standard set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of the report.

Use of proceeds from the listing

Details of the use of the proceeds from the Listing are set out on
pages 21 to 22 of this annual report.

Auditor

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company,
will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the
Company and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to be held on 26 May
2022 to seek Shareholders’ approval on the appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor until
the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix
their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
Mr. Li Chengjun

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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.;.;..
;.:.:- SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited BEXPAN(ER)EAMSHEAAERAT
LR 43/F., Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue BRI EEI3
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong FE—HA4318
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FSPROCOMM INTELLIGENCE LIMITED

SPROCOMM INTELLIGENCE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 121 to 216, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Expected credit loss (“ECL”) of trade and
bills receivables

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HRETER

% 55 50 A IR S0 T
FEER(FHAHEESE]
E2ME LM ERENEIORMEINE
B -

b1

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEREFPNMEEEBEE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade and bills
receivables amounted to RMB226,014,000, representing 24% of
the Group’s total current assets.

Loss allowance for trade and bills receivables is estimated
based on lifetime expected credit losses (“‘ECL”) model, which is
estimated based on historical credit loss experience and forward-
looking information at the end of the reporting period.

We have identified impairment of trade and bills receivables as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessment of trade
and bills receivables involved a significant degree of management
estimation and may be subject to management bias.

RZT=——F+-A=+—H BIEKABEREKZEDH
ﬁg@ﬁAE%wmwwmn h BEEERHEELEN
BOENAEREREERESHEREEEE ((AHEE
EBE)EX G EBRRE mMEREEREBNERKREHR
MNBAEEBBRERMAEHERGEESE -
HRESERZEBNMNERZERETESRERNERGHT R
EEErREERFERE EEEREIRERBREREED
BEHR A —THREERTEE -

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s judgement and estimates used
in assessment process and challenge the
reasonableness of inputs and assumptions
used in estimating the ECL of trade and bills
receivables.

We obtained an understanding of how the ECL
of trade and bills receivables were assessed by
the management.

We have challenged management’s assumption
and judgement in determining ECL on trade
and bills receivables as at 31 December 2021,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping
of the trade debtors in the provision matrix,
and the basis of expected credit loss rates
applied, adjusted for forward looking information
including both current and forecast general
economic conditions.

We have tested, on sample basis, payment
history, past due status of the trade and bills
receivables, and the settlements subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

We have tested the accuracy of the historical
default data and tested trade receivables past
due ageing analysis as at 31 December 2021,
on a sample basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the relevant supporting
documents.
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Valuation on Inventories

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HRETSEE

FEM&E
BLMEAMBERRMT I8 RMEIM &t
B -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEREFPUMEEEBEE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately RMB280,485,000, representing 30%
of the Group’s total current assets.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
due to the use of judgements in identifying obsolete and slow
moving inventories and determining the net realisable value which
are based on conditions and the marketability of the inventories.

R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—H GZENERELHAEARE
280,485,0007T ' 16 BEEEMRBEELE30% °

EERFEMRARABRETFE  THRBBIRENEHE
& - A&*ETFT? SR REEEEE 2R FEREER
1 - ENBRIEFEENGEEEHRENFHEE
Hﬁ(ﬁ&ﬂfﬁliﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁr I HEE 77 B A A E R -
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Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate
management’s assessment of the conditions
and the marketability of the obsolete and slow
moving inventories and identify any valuation risk
of inventories.

We have assessed the net realisable value and
subsequent sale of inventories on a sample
basis and inspect the utilisation report and sales
contracts entered into between the Group and
its customers on a sample basis.

We have discussed with the management in
respect of the adequacy of the allowance made
by the management based on subsequent
usage and sales, ageing analysis and current
market conditions.

We have challenged the assumptions and
judgements used by the management by
assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company
and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the
Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

1 1 8 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN =

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

RE M BRGSEHRR AR
EHWET @

I

e B BERTEFERARELESFER
Wt EMIEL AR WIRBMEDRNE
R OHMTIEAFREEAEST BES
EOHECERNELEARMNER
SBEREENERTHEESE - HEFR
RIFEERTHEE M - BB &% B &
TP RFEEAEIZEFEAVBHRROMA
MEE WEBENETE RERFEE
REBER BENERHERBEZH
AM 3R & B HILEPRERS BB ETERRE - AT
AREFHELBAALEY EREEX

Y
FEKE -

o FEREMBHEANEBZHRIA &
BEAR BREEEEHN UL&EAH
BHREARETAERRBEAIZMER -

e B EEEAERIEXBEDINUBE
HERTREENESEE  AEHER
EMBBRRERER -BEFRAAKEE
RS EENRT BEFERERE
RAZZHMEE -

EFHEEZZE N (BT ERE) Bt E
#E  RREAZHEMRERETHRETER %
SRR BEFERMERETHR A
HEERI B ARERK -
EENABEZZEGHELRYH BEFCNE
ERABIMEMAEBEER YHRREER
ARERAERRSFEBIMENMBERER
HAhFI1H - AR (AER) 308 B BUZ M 2R ER
MTTEN S ER AP S Fa e

ZE =43 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 119



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHET RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5589

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2 —ZF ——F+ _—H=+—HIFFZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AR¥T
Revenue W s 5 2,000,104 2,182,038
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,827,867) (1,988,615)
Gross profit FE A 172,237 193,423
Other gains and income H bz U A 7 44,444 58,977
Selling expenses HE R (41,188) (38,108)
Administrative and other expenses 1T & E b5 5% (65,928) (62,355)
Research and development e
expenses (118,956) (112,803)
Finance costs MBER 8 (6,468) (5,483)
(Loss) profit before tax FRBLAT (B518) ‘& Fl (15,859) 33,651
Income tax expenses Frisfif > 9 (2,200) (2,967)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)EF 10 (18,059) 30,684
Other comprehensive income for FAEMEEEE
the year:
Item that may be reclassified HiEAJEEM 7R
subsequently to profit or loss 1BahYIE
Exchange difference arising on REBINEBEED
translating foreign operations & i =R 671 1,470
Total comprehensive (expense) FRE2E (X)) kxR
income for the year (17,388) 32,154
(Loss) profit attributable to: AT & 77 (B1E) a A
Owners of the Company AKRBHEEA (17,754) 30,879
Non-controlling interests e R = (305) (195)
(18,059) 30,684
Total comprehensive (loss) income LA N & 7 fE(h 2 (&)
attributable to: Wes 48 5E -
Owners of the Company PiN/NETEF SN (17,083)
Non-controlling interests R R (305)
(17,388)
(Loss) earnings per share TR (B518) &BF)
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAGEE(ARED) 14 (1.78) 3.09
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

At 31 December 2021 RZE - —F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARET T ARET T
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 15 121,866 139,564
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 21,132 7,007
Intangible assets mAE 17 9,183 6,233
Deferred tax asset FIEFIHE B 29 225 795
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 152,406 153,599
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 18 280,485 319,386
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWGRIE R BRI 19 226,014 339,218
Prepayments and other receivables B/ 3k T8 & H fth & Y 5018 20 132,252 101,673
Amounts due from shareholders JE UG IS BR FR T8 21 9,475 -
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER 22 219,165 251,071
Restricted deposits PR B 17 3 23 - 16,210
Bank balances and cash RITEHRMES 24 82,904 26,327
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 950,295 1,053,885
Current Liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables B RNFERENEE 25 524,131 591,972
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H Ab FE 5B 26 74,602 84,585
Contract liabilities EHBE 26 69,458 93,317
Borrowings BN 27 42,162 34,463
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 12,385 6,484
Deferred income PEAEYA 28 6,120 6,012
Income tax payable FERTPTIS TR 2,783 4,907
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 78164 821,740
Netcurrentassets ~~ #BHEERE ==~ 218,654 232,145
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBEE 371,060 385,744
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR AR

At 31 December 2021 RZZE - —#+_-A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARET T ARMBF T
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& A 30 8,945 8,945
Reserves i 31 306,979 324,391
Equity attributable to owners of RARIHE ANEGER
the Company 315,924 333,336
Non-controlling interests IR (87) 1,811
Total Equity A 315,837 335,147
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income PEIEYA 28 15,680 16,777
Deferred tax liability BEERIBEE 29 15,634 14,596
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 7,903 169
Borrowings & 27 16,006 19,055
55,223 50,597
371,060 385,744

The consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 216 were 121 ZE216 AWM A M BREAENR T =
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on F= A=+ AEZE St/ L FEFE - W

30 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: R IVEERERES
Li Chengjun Xiong Bin

TRE REMW

Director Director

EF EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SEREEE

n\l-_]_\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

Atrbutable to owners of the Company

KARERARE
Non-
Share e Stavty  Translaion Werger Other ~ Retained controling
captal premium 6ENe T6SENe 16SEIVe T6SEIVES pofts— Sub-lotal nterests Total
RE RhRE  fEEE  AERE  ABRE EbEE  REEA Nt FERER gt
RVBOOO ~ RVBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBON
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETT ARETR
ot 3) Mot 31f) WNote 31l Note 31)
(Hit30) (Hssm) (Hitsmy) (s
At1 January 2020 H-5-%E-A-H 894 80,439 16,226 4621) (26,744) 86,138 131,610 300,987 2006 302,993
Proft foss forthe year ERE(E8) - - - - - -8 0879 195 3068t
Eichange dferencearsngon - EE SRR
tranglaing foreign operations B 5 2% - - - 1470 - - - 1470 - 1470
Total comprehensiveincome ~ ER2ERE (%)
(expense) for the year a8 - - - 1410 - - 30879 0349 (19 0154
Appropration o statoy  BRZEERE
resenve - - 6,312 - - - 6:312) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZE
tZA=+-8 894 80,439 2,538 (3:157) (26,744) 8,138 156,77 333,336 1811 3o, 147
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H =+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARE AL
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Translation Merger Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve resene resene resenes profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
BE  BRBEE  iERE  BERE  AREE  RMEE  REEA M FERER 3
RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETn ARETR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 3)) (Note 31f)) Note 1)) Mote 31/if)
&) () wzsy - (Wi
At January 2021 HoRS-E-B-R M BN MR QU)W BB T B 1w
Loss forthe year ERER - - - - - N (17 I (TN ) (05 (18059
Toid comprehensive poft. ~ ERZEREEE
for the year - - - 671 - - - 671 - 671
Total comprehenshe fexpense) A2 (%) ik
proft for the year 2% - - - 71 - - (775 (17,083 (305 (17,369
Acouiston of non-contioling W3R E%
ilerests oo/ (W) - - - - - 9 - I X
Disposal of a subsidary oty 1t E-EHBAT
Uzl - - - - - - - - 4 461
Aopoprafon ostatvioy  ERZERRE
reserve - - 6,882 - - - (6,882 - - -
At 31 December 2021 H-5-%
tZAZt-H 8,45 89,439 29420 (2:486) (26,744) 85,809 131,541 315,924 87 315,837
Notes: B 5
a.  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 33.3% equity a. HE-ZET-—F+_A=+—HILFE ~NEEN
interest in Chengdu Sprocomm, a subsidiary of the Company from the non- A R ¥ 2,383,000 7T B9 X B 18] 3E 122 A% A% B8 U B AR 1 A)
controlling interests shareholder for a consideration of RMB2,383,000. MIE AR — AP R 33.3% s - R THKE A&
Upon the completion of the transaction, the Group held 100% of Chengdu B ERBRE 2B -
Sprocomm.
b.  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of 70% of b, HE-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE KNEHI

its equity interests in Shanghai Hai Huan Ming Chong Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company for a consideration of RMB1. Upon the completion of the
transaction, the Group did not hold any interest of Shanghai Hai Huan Ming

Chong Limited.

AR TR {8 H & AN 1R B F & 2 7] Shanghai Hai
Huan Ming Chong Limited 8 70% # 25 * & 5 52 &K
1% + 7K % B 7 #%5 7 Shanghai Hai Huan Ming.Chong
Limited fEfa 4 % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

n\l—_r\ IE%/)“JE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # = —

E-—FF —H=F—HIFFEZE

2021 2020
—E-TF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
(Loss) profit before tax B A (E51R) 4 A (15,859) 33,651
Adjustments for: FUATEEELAE
Finance costs R E =4 6,468 5,483
Government subsidies received B U BT 1 B (17,754) (29,209)
Amortisation of government grant AT 7 Bh #4 5H (7,600) (6,010)
Bank interest income HRITA B A (5,859) (4,229)
Written off of property, plant and equipment  #s5%13% - BB &R E 15 95
Amortisation of intangible assets mH A ERE 1,056 932
(Reversal) loss allowance recognised B S EWRKIB R ERERE
in respect of trade and bills receivables R () BB A (2,417) 2,170
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WEEEFEITE
equipment 20,805 18,778
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE 13,264 11,259
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M E A Rl (281) -
Gain arising from change in fair value of BAFEFAEE([EAF
financial assets at fair value through B ABRDNEREE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) NHEZE W= - (7,305)
Operating cash flows before working capital ~ &E & & ZBRIKLHE S
changes mE (8,162) 25,615
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (Em) 38,705 (35,430)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 W FIE K U R E
V2% 116,223 267,755
Increase in prepayment and other TEAT R I8 B H b fE U R IR
receivables N (30,631) (27,708)
Decrease in trade and bill payables B 5 RNFIERENEER
A (67,811) (270,086)
Decrease in accruals and other payables FEET B A R H A FE T FRIE
L (8,822) (31,087
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities AHEECRD) LM (23,721) 30,288
Increase in amounts due from shareholders & U A% B8 ZX T8 3% fin (9,475) -
Cash generated from (used in) operations LEMF (TR R 6,306 (40,603)
Income tax (paid) refund B ()RS (2,709) 457
NET GENERATED FROM (USED IN) RETBAE (AR FHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,597 (40,146)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%/)ILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —#+_-_H=+—HIFFE

2021 2020
—E-EF —N&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Payments for property, plant and equipment  FL41% - BE KRB R (3,122) (30,524)
Development cost capitalised for intangible ~ FAEL & EE LA R %
asset D% (4,006) -
Payments for intangible assets REBREENK - (774)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERAFETABEN
TREE - (7,020)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at &R A FEF ABZEH
FVTPL TRIBEMSRIA - 299,975
Placement in restricted deposit FEAZREIFR (93) (16,210)
Withdrawal of restricted deposit FREUSZ PR HIl 77 5% 16,303 -
Placement in pledged bank deposits FACERRITER (222,502) (170,353)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IR EEHIRITFR 254,337 -
Payment for acquisition of additional interest of &t U f& — R B 2 7189
a subsidiary BEOME R T 5K (2,383)
Interest received 2R B 5,859 4,229
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REFEEBHFEREFH 44,393 79,323
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R ESEE
Government subsidies received B BT 8 B 24,365 30,613
New borrowings raised EEEN 284,457 32,905
Repayment of borrowings BEER (279,205) (184,153)
Payments for capital element of lease liabilites & & & & A &5 H 1~ & (13,754) (11,912)
Interest paid BASFIE (6,468) (5,483)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING BtEEE S (FTH) REFHE
ACTIVITIES 9,395 (138,030)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReRASEEYIEMNOED)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE 57,385 (98,853)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURERRESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,327 126,682
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREFFHNTE (808) (1,502)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAERASEEY
END OF YEAR 82,904 26,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —ZF - —4F+ - H=+—HIFFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 15 August 2018
and its shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 13 November 2019 (the “Listing”). The ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Li Chengjun and Mr. Xiong Bin (the
“Controlling Shareholders”).

The address of the registered office is located in P.O.BOX
31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is located in
5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building, Tianan Chegongmiao
Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen, China.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are designing,
manufacturing and sales of mobile phones and printed
circuit board assembly (“PCBA”) and Internet of things (“loT”)
related products and investment holding. Particulars of the
subsidiaries have been set out in note 39.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRS in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position for the current and prior
year and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

2.

BRI REETEBUBR
s g

A==

RAEE AEEEHERERTIEEY
BRELERZEFT BAKE T ——
F-A—HRBENMRFEREER

BAEMBHREAERF 16  COVID-1947
ACCHEN) BAELER

BRMBMEERNFE O - FITE%E

EEGIEREI - WE—
BEMBRELENET7 FREE

S BAMBREER
FARRBBMBIRE
ZERIFE165% (BRTA)

RAFEERBIGT REEFT BB BER
SEAHASERANEFRERBEFEDN
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BRAERBLBENTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
:%/T:l

BAFS R AR PIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendment to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective.

HKFRS 17 and Amendments  Insurance Contracts and related Amendments?

to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRSs

Reference to Conceptual Framework

Sale or Contribution of Assets between in Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assts and Liabilties arising
from a Single Transaction?

Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fuffiling a Contract!

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no

material impact on the results and the financial position of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —#+_-_H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and non-controlling interest.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

3.

FEEEEE
EERHBERIIMT -

mERE
RARBRERBEADAREAD AR
B 2 B AT 60 B B MO BT RS 4R

WAER: (VHIREHRHEEED ()8
2HEEEWREF MG ARG Z
Ok Ri)EENDUNEHREHEH
EHFEAREBOIHKDEE - BIESIEHIE -

WMEEERBRBTR - bt = {7 F#
TEBE-HEFALHERE  AEEE
ERAHAE SRR E T RS -

HEEERBERABTR EXFIHH =18
HEEPE-BARZELRZL  AIAX
SEHEeENTREEOHREUREAR
12 I -

P 8~ B U A K B 32 B AN 52 (B XA 12
REARE FFTASERaEME2EK
AR YEEAEETBZEHREATR -

By 2 AR 28 R 2 TR R L
A DBERAL GG ARIEEIERS -

SERARARARZERZMBEEE B
& #Ew - WA AX MRS RENEAR
AFRBS BB 8H o

REEEHBRRNVER S HENE

ARMBRENER FH RARSEE
B -

ZE 43R Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods and services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services to a customer.
Specifically, the Group uses a five-step approach to
recognise revenue:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligations is
transferred to customer.

1 32 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

e The Group’ performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods

The Group produces and sells mobile phones, PCBAs for
mobile phone, loT related products, and other products
related to mobile phones. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when control of the product has transferred
to the customer. Control of the product is considered
transferred to the customer generally on delivery of goods
to the customer’s specified location and when customer
acceptance has been obtained which is the point of time the
customer has the ability to direct the use of these products
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of these
products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and accepted by customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due. Payment of
the transaction price is usually due within 30-90 days of
the date when control of the products is transferred to the
customer.

The Group normally received range from 5% to 30% of
the contract value as deposit from customers when they
signed the sale and purchase agreement for sales of
products. For certain sale order received from customer
relating to IOT related products, the Group received 80%
of the contract value as upfront deposit when they signed
the sale agreement. These deposits are recognised as
contract liabilities until the goods have been delivered to the
customers.

The Group provides warranties for general repairs of
defects to ensure that the products comply with agreed
upon specification and they are therefore assurance-
type warranties and the Group accounts for the warranty
in accordance which HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do nor contain a purchase option). For these leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted by
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability represents the fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the “Impairment losses
on tangible assets and intangible assets” policy as stated
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of

a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to
separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Group has used this practical expedient
for all leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the subsidies will be
received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related cost for which the
subsidies are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government subsidies whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government subsidies related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

1 38 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits cost (Continued)
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —4#+_-_H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right- of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately. Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined
above.

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted
average method. Net realisable value of inventories
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are
recognised and derecognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. The
Group’s financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding ECL,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the “other gains and income” line item.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade and bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted deposits, other receivables, amounts
due from shareholders and bank balances and cash).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instruments.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bill
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forward looking information including
both current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for trade and bills receivables.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular debtors, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

e  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default, i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when
it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

e information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade and bills receivables, when the
amounts are over 24 months past due, whichever occur
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

e |t is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit
losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit
losses (Continued)

For the financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as immediately in profit or
loss as income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 — & —

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4.

UNCERTAINTY

—F+ZA=F—HIFE

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and

intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful
lives reflect the Company'’s directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets, based
on various factors. The estimation of useful lives impacts
the level of annual depreciation or amortisation expenses

recorded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
finite useful life

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with finite useful life may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered impaired, and
an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss.
These assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When a decline
of the assets’ recoverable amounts below the carrying
amounts has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less costs
of disposal because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of sales volume and amount of operating costs. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets were RMB21,132,000, RMB121,866,000 and
RMB9,183,000 (2020: RMB7,007,000, RMB139,564,000
and RMB6,233,000) respectively.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivables

The impairment for trade and bills receivables is based
on assumptions about ECL. The Group used judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the number of days
that trade and bills receivables are outstanding as well
as the Group’s historical experience and forward-looking
information at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying values of trade
and bills receivables is approximately RMB226,014,000
(81 December 2020: RMB339,218,000) net of allowance
for doubtful debt of approximately RMB2,581,000 (31
December 2020: RMB4,998,000).

Allowances recognised in respect of
inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance for
inventories based on the assessment of the net realisable
value. The management estimates the net realisable value
for inventories based on subsequent usage and sales,
ageing analysis and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amounts of inventories were
approximately RMB280,485,000 (2020: RMB319,386,000)
and no impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE 5. Wz
Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods WHEER—RELBREREEEREL
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and W (kR RkEERERE) -
sales related taxes. The Group’s revenue for the year is FAEEFAZRENE —FFRZER -

recognised at a point in time.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customer REZERBEIESINEPEOKRED
disaggregated by major product types is as follows: MranT :
2021 2020
—EZ—fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREF T
Mobile phone F 1,229,169 1,483,386
PCBAs EI il 88 B AR 4E 2% 19,728 103,532
IOT related products WGk A8 AR R EE o 591,308 480,950
Others H A 159,899 114,170
2,000,104 2,182,038
Transaction price allocated to the remaining TEFHRINENEEINXRZER
performance obligations
The sales contracts are with an original expected duration SHEA A ETFEHRHARE D —F o [ It
of less than one year. Accordingly, the Group has elected AEFEZETERORETY S &
the practical expedient and has not disclosed the amount BESRE AN A ERNEANS D
of transaction price for the performance obligation that is XS ER S -

unsatisfied as of the end of respective reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resource. The Group is principally engaged
in designing, manufacturing and sales of mobile phones
and PCBA and IOT related products. Information reported
to the chief operating decision makers, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment, focuses
on the operating results of the Company as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (the
place of domicile of the Group’s operation).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers presented based on the location of customers is
as follows.

6.

7 #R &
LN T%ﬁé%&%i% NEREE) W
BM2MOERN B AEENERE

PAE”?{EE’EEE&JJ@E&/J? REBTENR
ERE HERHEETH BRI ERER
MEEMBERBER AETREER
REZBURERDERRAFNEZE
BMEIRNARAEREERSE  ARA
SEZERCEES ABBYZEE
DEHPTBER - At AEE2INEED
HREHL o

ih 15 & ¥
REFNEEETENPFE (REBEBHT
) LT o

BEPUEZJMAEEIBEF K E
BRI -

Revenue from external customers

MEEF W=
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETF T
India ENfE 962,219 1,011,279
Algeria Fr] §8 K2 1) 28 25,132 22,935
The PRC + 791,076 919,927
Pakistan B EHTA 13,334 56,749
People’s Republic of Bangladesh & in#z A R AN 199,241 170,764
Other regions H b 3b [ 9,102 384
2,000,104 2,182,038

The Group’s non-current assets, excluded deferred tax assets,
amounted to RMB152,181,000 (2020: RMB152,804,000), are
all located in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. o EBE R @)
Information about major customers EREEXEEFEFZER

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total BRI ARG AEEHBRZEI0% A L2 R

revenue of the Group are as follows:

FT:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTTT

Customer A ZPA 471,031 511,520
Customer B ZFB 200,792 N/A 3 F

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

: AR M X7 A R SR AR MR ER 10% A L o

OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 7. Hitlrzm KW A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB QR WS 281 -
Bank interest income RIT A B UA 5,859 4,229
Reversal of provision for social O RS
insurance - 8,384
Gain arising from change in fair BRATEFABRNEHEA
value of financial assets at FVTPL & 8 A FE & 8 & £ s - 7,305
Reversal of impairment loss B o D RRREEE
recognised 2,417 -
Government subsidies (Note) BRAT /A (f122) 17,754 29,209
Amortisation of government grant BT 8 Bh # 88 (4722 28)
(Note 28) 7,600 6,010
Indemnification for litigation loss ERIRRBEERFALZ
from the controlling shareholders  &18 (#7151 41)
(Note 41) 9,475 —
Sundry income HETE WA 1,058 3,840
44,444 58,977

Note: The government subsidies represent the one-off government grants
that were received from local government authorities of which the
entitlements were unconditional and were therefore immediately
recognised as other income.

FiaE < BRI B 45 0 8 % (B8 77 B FF RS R B —
8 B 15 B8 6 84 A 0 R+ ERLUEEDR
ﬁﬁmfﬁ\\
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMAK
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETF T
Interests on: THEEZHE :
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,221 643
Discounted bills financing and EEMEMBERREER
factoring loans 4,384 3,546
Borrowings B 863 1,294
6,468 5,483
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FISHiBxX
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EREH
(“EIT"): ([E¥EmBEH]) -
— Current income tax —BIERRTISHE 912 881
— Over provision in —BEFERERE
prior year (320) (1,576)
Deferred tax (Note 29): EIERLIE (M52 29)
— Charge to current year —RARFE R 1,608 3,662
Income tax expenses PSR 32 2,200 2,967

M

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands and Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The statutory tax rate of subsidiaries in Hong Kong is
16.5%. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of
Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits
of qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been provided
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
as the subsidiaries in Hong Kong has no assessable
profits for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F = —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

9. FTBFEX @

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries established in
the PRC is 25%.

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Sprocomm”) is recognised as a High and New-
technology Enterprise for the first time in July 2014,
which has been granted tax concessions by the local
tax bureau and is entitled to PRC EIT at concessionary
rate of 15% during the year ended 31 December 2016
and Shenzhen Sprocomm has further obtained the
renewal of its high technology qualification in October
2017 and is entitled to the concession rate of 15%
from 2017 to 2019. Shenzhen Sprocomm has further
obtained the renewal of its high technology qualification
in December 2020 and is entitled to the concession
rate of 15% from 2020 to 2023.

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shanghai Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Sprocomm”), is awarded the Software Enterprise
Certificate and was accredited as software enterprise
under the relevant PRC laws and regulations in
December 2015. Accordingly, Shanghai Sprocomm
was granted a tax holiday of two years’ tax exemption
and a 50% reduction in the EIT rate of 25% for the
next three years. The subsidiary was exempted
from enterprise income tax from 2016 to 2017, and
is subject to a reduced corporate income tax rate
of 12.5% from 2018 to 2020. In 2021, Shanghai
Sprocomm is recognised as a High and New-
technology Enterprise, which has been granted tax
concessions by the local tax bureau and is entitled to
PRC EIT at concessionary rate of 15% from 2021 to
2023.

The India taxation was calculated based on the rates
applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on the estimated
assessable profits. No provision of overseas profits
tax has been made, as the Group did not have any
assessable profits subject to overseas profits tax for
both years.

(i)

(v)

(vi)

REFBEEEMEHRE((EEMRE
Bk REEMBTOEB GG
REBEKRINHERRNRER
25% °

AEB—HHBARFIIREBE
BEaRAA (TFRIINKED R =
E-NNFELAHEXNERT AT
Rt %E TELHAHEBEBRTH
HESR REBEEZZE—X"F+=A
T BUEFERBEUNERREX
15% R P BEEMESH  FIIKR
BER-_ZE—tF+ABE—FEN
ESEmtEERTEEE S
—+tFE T -NFEXEEHX
15% c FINARER_ZE_ZF+ =
REE—FBHESHBMEESR
BRI BB _T_TEFE_T =
FEXEBERHREA5% -

AEB—MHWBAR EEREREE
BEERAR(TELERE) R
—hRFTZARBER@EPEERE
HERTEHLEZERERER
B E A EEREERW
FEROEHE YR RR=ZF
EMBHRMETHASON E25% ° %
MBARRZE—RNFEz_ZT—+
FHIRMRHMMNEERSH IR
—E-N\EE-_ZE-_TFHRBEREIK
125% M B EBMMPEMBR - =
T —F LEERBERTAESH
Rt TEMARERRTH
HER R FF2-F ==
FHENEBERE15%H R F BH A
ETSH -

ENJZ 3818 T i 47 5t 18 R B e AR PR
THEE RLAE S [ FTE M 2 DRGSR »
MR SR B 1 A I AN R

EAELBINS BB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 9.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

i8R X (@
AEEMFERES

VAN
BARA

BaE M EM

2EY SRR RDE A S RN T

2021 2020
=B —F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BFT T ARBFIT
(Loss) profit before tax BrE AT (E518) i (15,859) 33,651
Tax at the domestic income LB N FTIS BB & 25%
tax rate of 25% STEHNIE (3,965) 8,413
Tax effect of expenses not TAIB A RS2
deductible for tax purpose 2,931 3,079
Tax effect of non taxable income  FERRT W25 O B 75 52 2 () (10)
Utilisation of tax loss not B AREROTIAEE
recognised (206) (321)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBIAR BTS2
recognised 15,326 7,126
Additional deduction arising from  fiff 3% B 37 2= 4 HYE8 SMNR
research and development
expenses (10,730) (11,509)
Effect of different tax rates of REA R R4S & 5 B
subsidiaries operating in other RENTRBRTZE
jurisdictions (98) 418
Over provision in prior year BEFEBBEREE (320) (1,576)
Withholding tax on undistributed ~ — &l F BI I & A &) & 9k
earnings of a PRC subsidiary AR MBI (B77£29)
(Note 29) 570 1,047
Tax effect of tax exemption/ RIEHERERS, R
deduction from tax authority M2 (Ka9iv) % (v)
(Notes 9 (iv) and (v)) (1,306) (4,600)
Income tax expenses Frig R < 2,200 2,967

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —#+_-_H=+—HIFFE

10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. £ (B1R) =5

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREFIT
(Loss) profit for the year has been &R (E518) i@ MK (GTA)
arrived at after charging (crediting): 7| & IJE & E B :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11)  E=B& (A1a£11) 2,368 1,981
Salaries, allowances and e EMRHEHMER
other benefits (excluding directors’ ("R IEEEEE)
emoluments) 123,022 135,857
Contributions to retirement benefits iE R 1@ K 51 21 £ 7%
scheme (excluding directors’ (TBREEEH)
emoluments) (Note) (B17) 12,322 6,016
Total staff costs 8 TR AR 137,712 143,854
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BB 57 B 920 1,000
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & = # 1,056 932
Amount of inventories recognised B MR ARYHNEFEESEE
as an expense 1,827,867 1,757,285
Net foreign exchange losses b H BEF5E 4,859 3,362
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - E R RETE
equipment 20,805 18,778
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ A& EFTE 13,264 11,259
(Reversal of) impairment loss (FEE) B E 5 EUGRIE &
recognised in respect of trade and W Z K FER AR B B 18
bills receivables (2,417) 2,170
Written off of property, plantand #8543 - BE M &
equipment 15 95
Provision for litigation (Note 41) SERFREA B (KAt a1) - 327
Loss on litigation (Note 41) AR EE (M it41) 7,382 =
Note: According to the policies on reduction of social insurance fees Mat BEBEFEANBERMTEREBREE ==

ZE+ - A=t+—HUEFERXMOLEREE
REBEK  ARAMTEMBARATN =T =
ZE-AET-APRREHERBE -

announced by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
of the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries were entitled to waivers of the social insurance fees
during February to December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11.EEM &
Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: BEEMEFBOT

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of

services in connection with Salaries, Contributions

the management of the allowances to retirement
affair of the Company or its and other benefits
subsidiary undertakings: Fees benefits scheme Total
BAREERSEHBRENE e
FRERNME (RREBE p=1:1953 RIKEF
DR B EKE D AEE) we Hi B REEN MEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARBTR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE -ZT~ —4
+-A=+—H
LFE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FERELE
Executive of the Company) (RRAITHARE) - 552 26 578
Mr. Xiong Bin REM ST - 420 15 435
Mr. Li Hongxing' TR LA - 229 48 277
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan' IS4 - 241 6 247
Mr. Guo Qinglin SPEMIE A - 420 11 431
Independent non-executive HUIHHTEE
Directors - -
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit =mENEE 100 - - 100
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen EOKERE & 100 - - 100
Mr. Hung Wai Man HEAEREA 100 - - 100
Ms. Tseng Chin | BERZL 100 - - 100
400 1,862 106 2,368
Year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE - T -ZT4F
+-A=+—8H
EFE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FARELE
Executive of the Company) (ARB)fTHAAE) - 492 9 501
Mr. Xiong Bin A - 251 5 256
Mr. Li Hongxing' TR LA - 439 52 491
Mr. Guo Qinglin BEMEE - 300 5 305
Independent non-executive BUHBTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEEANLEE 107 - - 107
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BB L& 107 - - 107
Mr. Hung Wai Man HEEREE 107 - - 107
Ms. Tseng Chin | BERZ T 107 - - 107
428 1,482 71 1,981
1. MrLiHongxing has resigned as an executive director on 1 June 2021. 1. FAEXABR-FT-_—FA—BHEHEHT

Mr Wen Chuanchuan has been appointed as an executive director on

1 June 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The amounts disclosed above represent remuneration
paid or payable to the directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services an employee/director of the group
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) by
entities comprising the Group.

None the chief executive nor any of the directors of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021. No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company as an incentive payment for
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2020: two) was the directors (including chief
executive) of the Company, whose emoluments are set out
in Note 11 above. The emolument of the remaining four
(2020: three) highest paid individuals were as follows:

11.

12.

EEME @m

EXHBESEARNEEETARAD X
ENARBEFZHM BREREER
AZEE " EEERARARBEEAM
e Al 55 O AR A e B o

BHE-_ZT_ZFR_ZT=-_—F+=ZA
T+ —HALFE BMEXRARAEZITH
ABREMEERERRERNELREE
TR ERME  MERASEERER
RARMEMNESEIHMESEAMALRSE
E SRS ERBER A E -

EEME

AEBREZGESFALTHR  —R(ZF=
TF MB) BARBES (BREEEN
BAB) EMeHR EXWE11 - T
ME(CE-EF : ZR)BEaHALTH
BT

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Salaries, allowances and e R M EAMER]
other benefits 1,854 1,215

Contributions to retirement benefits R K18 F| 5t 2 £t 7%

scheme 484 156
2,338 1,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIREME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.

14.

Their emoluments were within the following band:

12. EEM € &)

BEHWEN T TIRE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-ETF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AH AH

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 % 7T 4 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group including the directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share during the
years is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue.

13.

14.

HE-_T-_—FR-_ZE=ZF+=A
—t+—HALEFE FAEERERNLAEE
FHEERSHFALT (BEARTESE)
A BN 1E A S| A Sk A K £ B
RSB S e A RER A -

Iz 2
BE-_Z-_—Rk-_FT-_FTF+_H
S+ HLEFE BEXNHIERTIR
EAERE  BEWMEHRETBERZZTIR
RS -

Zk(BE)BF

T SRERBFZHEDERARD
RIS A 5 R R B B 4T AR 0
FHBGHE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of AR ET & & I E A 2 F #Y
basic earnings per share (loss) (B8 BF (RAREA A
profit for the year attributable to  JE{5 4 /E (E518) % F))
owners of the Company (17,754) 30,879
TR Fh%
Weighted average number of ARt EERERZT &
ordinary shares for the purpose of & 38 % hn#E 57 15 &
basic earnings per share 1,000,000 1,000,000
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14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share

The Company’s potentially dilutive ordinary shares
comprise share options. Performance-realated employee
share options are treated as contingently issuable shares.
Contingently issuable shares are considered outstanding
and where applicable, included in the calculation of
diluted (loss) earnings per share as if the conditions of the
contingency are deemed to have been met, based on the
information available, at the end of reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, none of the
performance conditions of the share options were met, and
thus the dilutive potential ordinary shares are not included
in the calculation of diluted (loss) earnings per share. As a
result, diluted (loss) earnings per share is the same as basic
(loss) earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2021.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

14. 8% (F5#8) ZF @)

BREBERN (H1R)

ARARMELBEERRBEBERE -
HXERENE TERERR SRR
TR © AR EIT R WAR B AR ELT
Befn  XHEEROBERT  FEASKRE
B (E18) BN MFE - BN RER
RIBAIGER - SR GFRR BT IEK ©

R _ZTER T -_—F+=H8
=+—H - BREZEBOGEBIEER -
WEEBTELBRTEMATREE (&
B)EBANNGE At 2T =FF
F—E-_—F+_A=+—HIEEFEZ
BREE (BB BN EGRER (FE)
BT AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

FP-F

— = f = —HILEE
15. % - BMERRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ownership
interests
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor Office inland and
improvement ~ machinery  and fixture vehicles  equipment building Total
Rith
HENE BRR REFH
26 BEREE - BEfE RE  BARE  FERRER @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'00  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR
cosT 72
At 1 January 2020 RZE-EF-F-H 30,372 64,614 3,897 703 8,216 64,840 172,642
Additions HE 1,369 25,817 54 712 2572 - 30,524
Disposal e - (57) (13 - (830) - (900)
At31December 2020 R-E-T#F
T-A=+-H 31,741 90,374 3,038 1,415 9,958 64,840 202,266
Additions RE 502 2,017 - 119 484 - 3122
Written off 34 - (306) - - - - (306)
At31December 2021 R-E--%
T-F=1-8 32,243 92,085 3,038 1,53 10,442 64,840 205,082
ACCUMULATED RitiE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-EF-A-A 14,379 15,982 2,847 652 5,901 4,968 44729
Charge for the year FRY M 3,874 10,528 281 76 939 3,080 18,778
Disposal e - - (13 - (792) - (805)
At31December 2020 RW-Z-T#E
T-A=t+-H 18,253 26,510 3,115 728 6,048 8,048 62,702
Charge for the year ERTM 3912 12,550 202 181 790 3,080 20,805
Written off i - (291) - - - - (291)
At31December 2021 R-E-—-%
T-A=t+-H 22,165 38,769 3,407 909 6,838 11,128 83,216
CARRYINGVALUES  REfE
Asat 31 December 2021 R-E=—%
T-A=t+-H 10,078 53,316 531 625 3,604 53,712 121,866
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z_Z&
T-F=1-8 13,488 63,864 823 687 3,910 56,792 139,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F = —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follow:
Leasehold improvement 5 years or over lease term
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 3 years to 5 years

Furniture and fixture 3 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment 3 years

Ownership interests in land 20 years
and building

The Group has pledged its ownership interests in land
and building with a carrying value of approximately
RMB53,712,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB56,792,000) to secure the Group’s mortgage loan.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in view of
impairment indicator of drop of profit for the year of the
Group, the management of the Group concluded there
was indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment (excluding ownership
interests in land and building), right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives are estimated
based on the basis if value in use calculation and certain
key assumptions. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the value in use calculation used the cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
of the Group covering a 5-year period and discount
rate of 21%. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of pretax cash inflows/
outflows which included projected revenue and gross
margins during the budget period. Budgeted revenue
and gross profit margins were determined based on past
performance and the management’s expectations for the
market development. The recoverable amount of ownership
interests in land and building is estimated individually based
on fair value less cost of disposal.

15. ¥ - BMEKRE @

FimE  BERREEE R
EREREAERETEMT

HEMEEXE R EY
(ABRE & RZE)

R K 2s —FEQ%F

MM EEERE =%F

"E HF

WA =F

THREFHRARE —tF

s
g

RZEBE-Z—F+_A=+—H ' K&H
EEBERmELDAARS5S3,712,000
T(ZZEZFF : AR¥56,792,0007T)
Mt REFAMAEEEZASANERN
RIBEFIRHEER -

REE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HLF
& ERAERF RGN TRABEDRR -
REEEREHTERETRREWE -
WEREE FTHREEERAFEAFH
ERMEREEETRETR -

R-_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 P%-
e REE(TREL W REFNHEEE
)  FREEERAFEATHERM
EREEMNAKESEERIEFERAEE
AEERETEERRGER - BETR
BAR FHREEFEENDBREAEE
EIEEAEMNRES FHRMFEER
SRR R21% IR REITHE - F A
BEFEEZNEMEARERZERANIES
RA/ MR EA B HPeiEEE
HEMNBEREREMNE -BERZER
EANEERBEBEAXENEEEHMS
TEMNEEMET THREFHNES
BT RE S EZRERFERLD
ERAMERIEET o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment
loss has been recognised for property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
finite useful lives as the recoverable amounts are higher than
the respective carrying amounts as a result of impairment
assessment.

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

15. % - BMERRE @

HE-ZZ-_—F+-HA=1+—HIEFE "
BEERDE BEL&E FAEE
EXTEAFHERNEFLEENRE
EE - AARBRETE JlkE$E
BRE B IRMEE -

16. EHEEERBEERE

() Right-of-use assets () ERAEEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
+t=A=+—-H +ZA=+—AH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Machines a3 588 1,902
Buildings g 20,544 5,105
21,132 7,007

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings and
machines. The lease terms range from one to six
years.

In respect of lease arrangements for machines
which are under hire purchase, the ownership of the
machines will be transferred to the Group by the end of
the lease terms. The Group’s obligations are secured
by the lessors’ title to the leased assets for such
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H =+—HIFFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (Continued)
(i) Lease liabilities

(i) HEEE

31 December

16. FAEEEREESRE @

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEERF
+=B=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Non-current portion ERENE D 7,903 169
Current portion mENE S 12,385 6,484
20,288 6,653
Amounts payable under lease liabilities: HEABRNEMNHIE

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
+=HB=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFT
Within one year —F K 12,385 6,484
After one year but within two years — Z MW & 7,903 169
20,288 6,653
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 1218 B RWEIHA&E &
within 12 months (shown RERTREBARE
under current liabilities) HR) (12,385) (6,484)
Amount due for settlement after 12 & A 18 B HA 45 & ;0B
12 months 7,903 169

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities in
respect of machines under hire purchase agreements
amounted to approximately RMB476,000 (31
December 2020: RMB1,827,000) was secured by the
lessors’ title to the leased assets of RMB588,000 (31
December 2020: RMB1,902,000). During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into a
number of new lease agreements in respect of renting
properties, and recognised right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately RMB27,389,000 (2020:
RMB921,000).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

16. FHEEEREEESE S @

(i) HESEW@
NR—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8" ' #™
BEhaETHERNEEEEOA
R¥476,000c (ZEZEF + =
A=+—H: AR%¥1,827,000
THRERAANHAEEEERAR
588,000 (ZE-_EF+ = A
=+—H: AR¥1,00200075m) &
ReBE_E-_—F+_A=+—
BILEFE AEERAEMETY
AETHHERS WREAREE
rHEEBBEHAR27,389,0007T
(ZZ2=ZF : AR¥921,0007T) °

(i) REHEBEANEHE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E_FF
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Depreciation expenses on CREEENTERX
right-of-use assets
— Buildings —gF 11,950 9,848
- Machines — s 1,314 1,411
Interest expenses on lease liabilities & & &7 85 % 1,221 643
Expenses relating to short-term EEHERERX
leases 1,702 1,596
Others (iv) HAtb

During the year ended 31 December 2021, total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
RMB16,677,000 (2020: RMB14,151,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of RMB20,288,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
RMB21,132,000 (2020: lease liabilities of RMB6,653,000
and related right-of-use assets of RMB7,007,000). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

1 74 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2021

REBEE-_T-_—F+=-_A=+—8H
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HERRBIHEZL
R-ZZE-Z—F+-A=+—H B®ER
M FE & & A AR 20,288,000 7T * 18
MEMEEERARKE21,132,0007T (=
ToTF: HEAEARAREG6653000
7T B A E E R AR 7,007,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE

Computer Development
software Patents cost Total
E =H B R A et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARBFTT ARBTT
COST 29N
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZEF—H—H 7,505 1,266 - 8,771
Additions NE 774 - - 774
At 31 December 2020 N-_E-ETFE
+=-—A=+—H 8,279 1,266 - 9,545
Additions NE - - 4,006 4,006
At 31 December 2021 NZEZ—F
+=-HB=+—8H 8,279 1,266 4,006 13,551
AMORTISATION Y
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FTF—H—H 2,204 176 - 2,380
Charge for the year FRZH 868 64 = 932
At 31 December 2020 N-_E-ETFE
+=-—A=+—H 3,072 240 - 3,312
Charge for the year FAREH 930 126 - 1,056
At 31 December 2021 NZEZ—F
+-B=+—8H 4,002 366 - 4,368
CARRYING VALUES BREE
As at 31 December 2021 R _-FE - —4F
+—-A=+—H 4,277 900 4,006 9,183
As at 31 December 2020 WR-ZT T 4F _
+-—A=+—H 5,207 1,026 -

—T =% Sprocomm Intelligence Limited | /5

—=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Development costs and patents are internally generated.
Capitalised development cost represents the cost in
relation to the self-developed feature for loT products. All
of the Group’s computer software were acquired from third

17. B E=E @)
BB AN RER ABRNIELE - BA(E
BB R #5808 3 BB e W B 4 (loT) EE
e B BRI AR o 7K & B P A B RS 1
HEAE-FBE ZSBEBEENN

parties. Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight- THIMRERIER
line basis over the following periods:
Computer software 10 years EHEEES 104
Patents 10 years =7 104
Development costs 3 years 7 B B 7R 3F
18. INVENTORIES 18. Z&
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR ARBFT
Raw materials R % 248,949 211,366
Work in progress T2 11,029 59,684
Finished goods 2K 20,507 48,336
280,485 319,386
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EZBRRERERERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Trade receivables 2 5 rEWRIE 218,420 333,695
Bill receivables el E 1B 10,175 10,521
Less: Loss allowance W BIERE (2,581) (4,998)
Trade and bills receivables B 5 M s & e W= 226,014 339,218

The gross amount of trade and bills receivables arising
from contracts with customers amounted to approximately
RMB228,595,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB344,217,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group allows credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers depending on creditability of the customers. The
Group does not hold any collateral over its trade and bills
receivables. The following is an aged analysis of trade and
bills receivables, net of allowance for impairment of trade
and bills receivables presented based on invoice dates,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period.

10. E5 RN EREREE @)

AEERTEFNEAEARESRR
REHORNEEHR AEFBTEREH
5 WA M B B A EME R -
TREIPNREHRREZZEH (EE
B s R B BEE) 250 E 5 R UGK
AN EWERE (IR E 5 UK R & -
WRBRERRE) R -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBTTT

Within 30 days 30 RLAR 179,366 261,873
31 to 60 days 31 260K 29,159 34,177
61 to 90 days 61 290K 15,136 24,672
Over 90 days 90 KA 2,353 18,496
Total HBET 226,014 339,218

No interest is charged on the trade and bills receivables.

BESLE 5 YA KRR IR ER S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

19. EZ BN E

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The debtors
are grouped under a provision matrix into three internal
credit rating buckets (namely: low risk, medium risk and
high risk) based on shared credit risk characteristic by
reference to past due exposure of the debtor. There has
been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current year. The Group
recognised lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables
individually and/or collectively as follows:

ERAKEEERRE
SEUEPETREE
KREER

Ey—#o
AEA o B R
BIEFHM 2 EE A B

RIE K EWRE @)

R

é{ﬂ REBRBEREEFEAD R =E

WER(E A SR AR R (B : (KR
e ER)
PN L

R R

AR MR AN FRFEHNE

WEEEF - KREBEBLE HEYGK

AR EREERERNR, AR ERNE
HEBEEBRLT

Gross
Weighted carrying Loss
average amount allowance
IEEFEIEE BEREE EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETT ARBFIT
As at 31 December 2021 W _-ZT - —4F
+=—A=+—8
Low risk LV 1.13% 228,595 2,581
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZT-ZT4F
+=-—A=+—H
Low risk K= b 1.45% 344,217 4,999

The estimated loss rate are estimated based on historical
default rates and adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted economic growth
rates in PRC, India and other countries, which reflect the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the
management of the Group to access both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Movements of impairment loss allowances of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

10. ESEWRERERERE @)

B 5 & WK TR K JE M SR R Y R (B A 1R I
wBEFHINT

RMB’000

ARBFT

As at 1 January 2020 N_ZE-_TF—H—H 2,828
ECL Impairment loss allowance TEHEEBERAERERE 2,170
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+_HA=+—H 4,998

Reversal of credit loss for trade and B S EW B R EWER(ZE

bills receivables EE RO (2,417)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 2,581

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group discounted and
factored trade and bills receivables in aggregate amounts of
approximately RMB38,351,000 (2020: RMB31,414,000) to
banks and factoring company for short term financing.

Transfers of financial assets

The following were the Group’s trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 that were transferred to
banks and factoring company by discounting those trade
and bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these trade and bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the trade and bills receivables
and has recognised the cash received on the transfer as
secured borrowings (see Note 27). These trade and bills
receivables are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

RATRE I - (5 AR EA R
R W RE -

RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—H £&H
MEHRMERRTRRERRERR
BLARE AN AR 38,351,000 (ZF =
T ARMES1,414,0007T) B E 5 fE IR
I R -

THMEEER

TXEIAEER _7_§¢&_7
TFt+ A=+ -HNEZRKRK
REWRE - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%‘a”%ﬁé%%’&ﬁ&%
WEREBEEMEBRBEERRCE
ETRITMFREAR - AR A KB AL &
BEZTE SRR L EREEAM
MERREBREER HEEERZSE
SREFRANERRENREAE I
ERREEMEINRcBRA LA R
B8 (RME27) - ZFEZRUWHIEAR
FEU AR AR S B 15 AR L R AR 8 35 X AR
SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
Transfers of financial assets (Continued)

The trade and bills receivables discounted and factored to
banks and a factoring company with full recourse are as

10. E5 RN EREREE @)

EHMEEEE @
BRI RREAFBERFEALSR
R EENE 5 U R RS ET

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEZERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBFT
Carrying amount of transferred EEEEEMNEREEE
assets 38,859 29,361
Carrying amount of associated EEEENREE
liabilities (38,859) (29,361)
Net position SFEEET - -
Note: Htat -

(i) The maturity dates of bills receivables have not yet due at the end of
the reporting period. As the Group still exposed to credit risk on these
receivables at the end of the reporting period, the cash received from
discounted bills discounted to bank are recognised as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

() EREEOFHHAERSHRERIH - AR
AEBERESHRNEAGRZSREEENEER
R - HRITEER N RRKEINIR S E A F
BRARTERHRBDEE

20. T8+ FRIE R H Ath B W R IR

RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Prepayments TEfTRIE 65,132 36,664
Deposits e 1,995 1,776
Other tax recoverable E fth AT Y Bl 7 1E 62,572 59,343
Others Hith 2,553 3,890
132,252 101,673

Note: Included in prepayments and other receivables are other advances
and refundable deposits of approximately RMB4,548,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB5,666,000). These balances have low risk
of default or have not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and no impairment loss is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

21.

22.

23.

24,

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and non-trade in
nature. Details of the amounts due from shareholders are
set out in Note 41.

Expected credit loss risk of amounts due from shareholders
is assessed to be remote as there is no significant change in
the credit risk on the amounts due from shareholders since
initial recognition.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of approximately
RMB219,165,000 (2020: RMB251,071,000) were pledged
by the Group for the purpose of securing discounted bills
loans (Note 27) and general banking facility granted to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, pledged bank deposits of
RMB54,791,000 (2020: RMB62,768,000) carried fixed
interest at 4% per annum (2020: 4%) and RMB164,374,000
(2020: RMB188,303,000) carried floating interest rate
ranged from 0.3% to 2.05% (2020: 0.3% to 2.05%) per
annum.

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, aggregate bank balances of
approximately RMB16,210,000 in Shenzhen Sprocomm
were being frozen by banks as the respective banks had
received notice from court with regard to a litigation claim.
Such bank balances were included in restricted deposits
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020 and were released upon the settlement
of the litigation during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Details of the litigation are set out in Note 41.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2021, bank balances carry interest at
floating rates based on bank deposit rates.

21.

22.

23.

24,

JE W I SR KT
RAAREEA ERFEHME-
FEM IR TR BB BB I 41 -

FEU R R IEHEE BB AR KT AR
W AREERRFIAS VHnERR
EERRITESERED -

EIEFRTER
RZBZ—F+-A=+—8 K&E
BEEHH ARK219,165,000T (ZF =
T AR #251,071,0007T) BIIR 1717
FIEARNEBERBEEE R (M
27) R —BURTTREE MK IR -

R-_ZTZ-_—FE+-_A=+—H &
RITTFERARKES4791,000T (Z 2=
T4 AR%62,768,0007T) 17 & E Fl B
FRRAN (ZTE_TF 1 4%) T ERA
R #164,374,0007C (ZZZZF : AR
188,303,000 7T) I F FI| E N T 0.3% &
2.05%(ZZE - : 03% £2.05%) 5t & °

3 BR #l 7 =X
R-ZE-_TEF+_A=+—H #BHR
FROTEWEEZRBEFLARENB
MR RENBITERBBOARE
16,210,000 T E W SR1T R4 - X FRITH
HEAZZE-_ZF+-A=+—HHW
RATBERRAROZBRHTRD - BR
BE-_ET-_—4+-_A=+—HIEE
FEFRATREERER - R B IRH
FE41 e

RITERRRE

BREVIRTTF RN R F B M KGHE 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 5. BESENFERENERE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARMBF T

Trade payables B 5 ENFIE 291,125 333,546
Bills payables AN 233,006 258,426
Trade and bills payables B S REMNFIERENZE 524,131 591,972

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting

REBEHRR BEFRNRBRENRRE
REZAHZIINRESIITAT

period.
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
Within 30 days 30 KA 244,683 286,118
31 to 60 days 31E260K 100,482 158,663
61 to 90 days 61290k 64,746 53,480
Over 90 days I N> 114,220 93,711
Total BEr 524,131 591,972

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
ranging from 30 to 60 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.

RBERNFHEERNFI0E60K -
AKECDHE SR EAREEBRRARR
FrA RN RIEAT R EE B ARER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —2Z& —

—F+ZA=F—HIFE

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. J?”E—rﬁﬁﬁ REMESFTIBEUR
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES eHNEE

2021 2020

—E-—F TR TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBEF T

Salary payable EBEHS 47,762 52,926

Other payables (Note (i) H b e~ 5B (A5 () 10,268 13,719

Government subsidies in advance & Yt T # BE (4752 (i)

(Note (i) 12,357 12,357

Other tax payables H b < R 1E 4,215 5,583

74,602 84,585

Contract liabilities (Note (i) G HIB1E (K7L (i) 69,458 93,317

Notes:

0

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2021, there is no provision for litigations in other
payables (2020: RMB2,093,000) as the lawsuit is settled. Details of the
litigations are set out in Note 41.

Government subsidies in advance included in accruals and other
payables are mainly related to the capital expenditure incurred for
property and equipment, leasehold improvement and subsidies
for recruitment of certain number of workers for factory operation,
before fulfilling certain conditions under the terms of the government
subsidies. The government subsidies received may need to be
refunded if the subsidiary failed to fulfill the attached conditions within
the stipulated time. Upon fulfillment of those conditions, government
subsidies related to compensation of expenses are credited to the
profit or loss in the year the Group complied with the conditions
attached to the subsidies, whereas assets-related subsidies are
reclassified to deferred income and credited to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB69,458,000 (2020: RMB93,317,000), which represented receipts
in advance from customers.

Significant changes in contract liabilities

The significant decrease in contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021
was mainly due to the advance from customers as at 31 December
2020 had been recognised as revenue upon transfer of goods during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021 that
was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year is
approximately RMB71,654,000 (2020: RMB41,668,000). There was
no revenue recognised in the current year that related to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior year.

wiz -

(i)

(iii)

RIB-—F+"A=+—H BRHFREL
iR - ﬁiiﬂﬁéﬁfﬁlﬁﬁmlﬁpﬂmﬁ N (=
T T F: ARM2,093,0007T) © #FFAR B
R4 -

B FEET B P R At JE < R IR A TR R 4 B
TERHRAERBTHANE THRRTHE T &
HRIMERRBRAEENEANS  BEXE
ERBEEERSFETHE T ANMBLIAEH -
i 7 BE R BEFE AR E S PRI AT & BT 45 16 1 AR
SHOBUFHEL AT BERR BIR B « AR B R IT1E -

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ 2 TR # B 58 18 8 B BT A 5T
ARNEEZ FERE  MAERBEMMEN S

BERERA  YIRABEENTRAFHEA
BAVRRT AR -

R-ZZE-_—F+—A=+—RH AHAEEAR
HARM69,458000L (ZT=FTF : AR
93,317,0007T) ' FEEREFEK -

BHEBNEREL
R-BZ—F+=-RA=+—AMEHNAEKNIE
WL FERAR-_T_TF+-_A=1+—HM
BERAERBE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—A
IHEERNEREBRER AR

RENETEFENCRERNRE

RBE_ T =+t _A=t-HALEFEH®
ROWRFFAFINENEE  DAARE
71 ,654,0007C (ZE=FF : AR 41,668,000
TL) cAFEWESR F—FECEKRNBOE
HEBENBEER N -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —4#+_-_H=+—HIFFE

27. BORROWINGS 27. B
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBF T
Bank borrowings, secured IRITIER - BB (Kt al)
(Note a(j) 58,168 36,445
Other loan, secured (Notes afii) & ¢) EtbE k- B EE
(Bt 7 afi) % () - 17,073
58,168 53,518
Borrowings comprise: BRELE
Variable-rate borrowing (Note b) 3% B &5 (K1:Zb) 19,817 22,104
Fixed-rate borrowings (Note a) & B &7 (Ktita) 38,351 31,414
58,168 53,518
Carrying amount repayable (based FEfI BREIE (R E B Fr
on scheduled repayment dates Hr2ERBE) -
set out in the loan agreements):
Within one year —FR 42,162 34,463
More than 1 year but lessthan2 ~ —F A EEMFIUARA
years 3,049 3,049
More than 2 year but lessthan 5~ M A EBRF AR
years 6,097 9,146
More than 5 years BBERF 6,860 6,860
58,168 53,518
Carrying amount repayable on MEBBETIRARERE
demand or within one year B —FANEENKREE
shown under current liabilities 42,162 34,463
Amount shown under non-current  FERENEE T 5RO ERE
liabilities 16,006 19,055
58,168 53,518
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@)

As at 31 December 2021, the fixed-rate borrowings included (i)
discounted bills loans and packing loans from banks of approximately
RMB38,351,000 (2020: RMB14,341,000) carried interest rate ranged
from 3.62% to 4.42% (2020: 3.62% to 4.42%) per annum and (i)
a receivables factoring loan of nil (2020: RMB17,073,000) carried
interest at 4% per annum (2020: 4% per annum).

The variable rate borrowing represent a bank borrowing repayable
by installments within 10 years, bears interest at 10% premium over
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) benchmark lending rate per annum
and subject to annual repricing based on the same benchmark. The
borrowing is secured by mortgages over the Group’s ownership of
land and buildings as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group had certain trade receivables discounted with a factoring
company with recourse. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
no receivables (2020: RMB17,073,000 with effective interest rate at
4% per annum) not derecognised due to factoring arrangement with
recourse. On 28 November 2018, an independent factoring company
filed a joint lawsuit against a subsidiary of the Group in relation to this
factoring loan. Details of the litigation are set out in Note 41.

The amounts of borrowing facilities and their utilisation at

27. B & &)

Wik :

@ WMZZEZ—F+ZA=1t—H TEEERE()
HEARME38351,000L (ZE_FTF : AR
#14,341,00070) MBI RBEERRIFITITE
B BmEFERIE2% E4.42% (Z T -FF ¢
3.62% 2 4.42%) B BT (2= F:
AR17,073,00070) MR BREBER &
FRRA% (T _TF  §F4%)518 °

b) ZFEEFEBERTEADHEE  WIRFEA
RBRT((HEAREBIT]) HEERFFE N
10% 1 EF B RBESFENEREESH TE
HRITER R —FR-ZF_FTF+=
B=+—8 " EXBEAKEN L RIEFHE
TEZABE AR -

© AEER-HREAFANEETABRED
BoEWRE R E-—F+-_A=+—
A AEEYERKGFERIERLERENR
BREMABIEER(ZE_ZF : AR
17,073,0007C ' IREBRFME4%ETE) - R
Z—N\F+—A=Z+N\H —HBIREAA
RZREERHHASE BB R RRERL
FIEFEA  FRARFEBRMIFE4T -

REEHRR - EFXBRESELDABR

the end of the reporting period are set out as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Facility amount MERE 159,265 162,992

Utilisation BABR

Secured bank borrowings BEMRITER 38,351 14,341
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME 28. IEEW A

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
At the beginning of the year REF 22,789 27,395
Received during the year FRBI 6,611 1,404
29,400 28,799

Amortisation of government grant B fiF @ Bh#k 88 (A72£ 7)

(Note 7) (7,600) (6,010)
Balance as at the end of year FRES 21,800 22,789
Analysed as: DA

Current liabilities EAR=NE 6,120 6,012

Non-current liabilities ERBAE 15,680 16,777

21,800 22,789

Note: Deferred income consists of government subsidies provided by the
relevant PRC government authorities for the purposes of financing
the purchase of plant and machinery and the expenses related to the
leasehold improvement. The amounts are recognised as income to
match with related expenses and cost incurred on systematic basis
over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon completing inspection
by the related government authorities. During the year ended 31
December 2021, government subsidies released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately RMB7,600,000 (2020: RMB6,010,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

29 EEBREE (RRE)
ATARMBS®E M2 ELEHALE
(B8 ST EEBERRNERE
TIEEBIEAERBTRAR K

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (LIABILITIES)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset
(liabilities), after set off certain deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial
reporting purposes:

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Deferred tax asset FEIEFTHE E 225 795
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE (15,634) (14,596)
(15,409) (13,801)

The followings are the major deferred tax asset (liabilities)

TXEHIRFAERNERELERIEE

recognised and movements thereon during the years: EEB RE@AZS
Withholding
taxon
undistributed
profitof  Impairment  Accelerated
aPRC loss on tax
subsidiary  receivables depreciation Total
m—E
B AR
RO YR
HmENH HESE MERERE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARBTR
At 1 January 2020 WZZE-ZF—-A—-H (10,348) 707 (498) (10,139)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (BT A& (1,947) 88 (1,803) (3,662)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZEFFZA=+—-HK
1 January 2021 —E--%-A—H (12,295) 795 (2,301) (13,801)
Charge to profit or loss NeER (570) (570) (468) (1,608)
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--5+-A=+-H (12,865) 225 (2,769) (15,409)
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax of 10% is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by a
PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008 onwards. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The directors determined that the management
of the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of their PRC subsidiaries. Deferred
tax liability is only provided to the extent that such profits
are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
Deferred taxation has been provided in respect of the
temporary differences associated with the undistributed
profits earned by a PRC subsidiary, Shenzhen Sprocomm
at the applicable withholding tax of 5%.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB188,811,000 (2020: RMB91,204,000)
available for offset against future profits. These unused
tax losses mainly arose from (i) the preferential tax
treatments of the research and development expenditure
which resulted in additional tax deductions related to
qualified research and development costs of Shenzhen
Sprocomm; or (i) losses incurred by Chengdu Sprocomm
Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Sprocomm”),
Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (“HK Sprocomm”),
Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Guizhou Sprocomm”) and Guizhou Mars Exploration
Technology Co., Ltd (“Guizhou Mars”). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the unused tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams for
these subsidiaries. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
PRC tax losses of approximately RMB178,827,000 as at 31
December 2021 that will expire in the next five years (2020:
RMB81,220,000). The remaining Hong Kong tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. iR A
Details of movements of authorised and issued share capital RATREERBBEITIRAZEFIFWT
of the Company are as follows:
Number of Share Equivalent
shares capital amount to
K EE &N LESH
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETFIT ARBTTT
Ordinary shares of FH0.01 B TR E R
HK$0.01 each JETE ¢
Authorised:
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZFR_F_—F
and 2021 +=ZA=+—H 10,000,000 100,000 86,213
Issued and fully paid: BT REE -
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZFR_FT_—F
and 2021 +=-—A=+—H 1,000,000 10,000 8,945

31.

All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

RESERVES

(i)

Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, companies
in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their
respective after-tax profits, calculated in accordance
with the relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to entities established in the
PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
relevant subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can
be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of these companies, provided that such fund
is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not distributable as cash dividends and
must be made before distribution of dividend to equity
owners.

FAEFBRNES T EHERERNESR

EEL S

31. # 1B

(i)

EERE

REFEREE FEEARAL
ARBEARETEREAKINE
BOEBSRAUMPBFED - &
AREE B DR F 6 10% E5TE
BERFREEERBHREED BB
J& 1~ R G B ANE50% © JATE &
AR BEFIIER A ATA -
AR 35 RETH B R SIR N F R A
AMER EZESELHEFHER
B Y B R B AL B ANE925% © A E
EETAERREKRESER LA
ERESHEBADKREAMEA -
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31. RESERVES (Continued)

(ii) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between
the consideration and the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

(iii) Other reserves
The amount represents (i) the amount paid by an equity
holder in excess of registered capital of Shenzhen
Sprocomm, (i) the deemed capital contribution
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group in 2018;
and (iii) the difference of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the additional equity interest in Chengdu
Sprocomm Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu
Sprocomm”) and the carrying value of the additional
equity interests of the subsidiary acquired during the
year ended 31 December 2019. (iv) the difference
of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the
additional equity interest in Chengdu Sprocomm and
the carrying value of the additional equity interests
of the subsidiary acquired during the year ended
31 December 2021.

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

Share-option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) upon Listing. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants,
including (i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (ii)
any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (iii) any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and (iv) such other persons who, in the
sole opinion of the board of directors of the Company, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force unless otherwise
cancelled or amended.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to Directors, chief executives,
substantial shareholders or any of their respective associates
are subject to approval by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding the independent nonexecutive directors
who are the grantees of the options). In addition, any grant
of share options to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of offer with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million made within any 12-month period from the date of
grant (inclusive) would be subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant of the share options; (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of shares of the Company.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
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2. RO EZARZ @)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of the Company
adopted in 2019, the Company granted share options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 69,100,000 shares (the
“Share Options”) on 14 April 2020 to certain directors
and employees. The options have a validity period of five
years from the date of grant. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to repurchase or settle the options
in cash. These options vest in tranches over a period of up
to 3 years.

The options are to be vested in three tranches, subject
to the Group achieving its profit target and the directors
and employees meeting their service conditions as well
(the “Performance Conditions”). The directors and
employees should remain in the Group’s employment until
those Performance Conditions are satisfied. Subject to the
fulfillment of the certain financial performance targets by the
Group, the three tranches of options are exercisable in the
following manner:

() 30% of the Share Options will be exercisable
commencing from 1 July 2021;

(i) 30% of the Share Options will be exercisable
commencing from 1 July 2022;

(i) the remaining 40% of the Share Options will be
exercisable commencing from 1 July 2023.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. RO ZHARZ @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Share-option scheme (Continued) BB REET B (|

TREIEE_TE-_—FF+_A=+—
ALFEEEREEFBEALRBERE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees during the

year ended 31 December 2021: K H)
Transfer Outstanding
Outstanding during at
at 1 January theyear  Lapedduring 31 December
2021 (note) the year 2021
Option type BRESR R-B=-% R=-B=-%
-A-8H FREER +=ZA=+-A
i R AT 6 (Hrit) FREAK i R AT
Directors S
14 April 2021 R -FWA+EA 12,500,000 3,600,000 (9,000,000) 7,000,000
Employees EE
14 April 2021 “E--FNA+MA 53,300,000 (3,500,000) (8,300,000) 41,500,000
65,800,000 - (17,300,000 48,500,000
Exercisable at the end of the B3R A/ 71
period - - S -
Exercise price T8 HK$0.51 % 7T - - HK$0.51BT

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees during the
year ended 31 December 2020:

TREEEE T _TF+_A=+—
AIFEEEREEMBZIAQGERE
REEIE N -

Outstanding
Outstanding Granted at
at 1 January during  Laped during 31 December
2020 the year the year 2020
Option type BRESRY R-ZZ-Ef R-Z-Ef
—A—H +=ZA=t+-H
i R AT FRERH EREAK i R AT

Directors £
14 Apri 2020 —Z-TFNA+EA - 12,500,000 - 12,500,000

Employees E&
14 April 2020 ZZ-ZFENATMA - 56,600,000 (3,300,000) 53,300,000
- 69,100,000 (3,300,000) 65,800,000

Exercisable at the end of the  E3R A 71

period = = = =
Exercise price TR fE - HK$0.51%T - HK$0.51B7T

Note: As Mr. Wen Chuanchuan was appointed as an executive Director on 1
June 2021, his share options were then reclassified from the category
“Employees” to the category “Directors” on the even date.

B - ARRINIEERZT=—F A —BAEEH
RPTES HBERERZBR[ERIRHE
MBREEE]EH -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The total fair value, which was determined by using Binomial
option price model, of the options granted under the share-
option scheme as at the grant date are approximately
HK$15,209,000 (equivalent to RMB13,812,000) on 14 April
2020. The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as

follows:

32. RO ZHARZ @)

Bl RESTE (E
F_?_YEEH+EE 1B 1% B8 B
EFEAEEBHRENBEREZ A
FEKA-ZEHAHETEERLETE)
#%15,209,0008 T (HE R AR
13,812,0007T) « ZIHARA W E E@{ A
LI SUNE

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£t FHt E=H#t

Exercisable period (subject to vesting conditions
being fulfilled)
R HH A TR (R AR S B R R 1T)

Share price at the grant date
B HEBARE

Exercise price per share
BRRITEE

Expected volatility

TE AR 18

Expected life of options
REAR TR T F HA
Expected dividend yield
TEEFAR B

Annual risk-free interest rate

3 B3 4

1July2021to  1Jduly2022to 1 July 2023 to
13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025

—EZ—F T —EC=F
tHA—HZE tH—H=ZE +tHA—HZ
—E-RF —E-RF —ET-REF
MA+=H MA+=H MA+=H
HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
0.51%7T 0.51%7T 0.51%7T
HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
0.51%7T 0.51%87T 0.51%&7T
53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
53.00% 53.00% 53.00%

5 years 5 years 5 years

5% 5% 5%

0% 0% 0%

0% 0% 0%

0.58% 0.58% 0.60%
0.58% 0.58% 0.58%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
businesses similar to the Group. The expected dividend
yield is determined by the directors based on the expected

future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the director’s best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
share-based payment expense was recognised as the

performance condition was not satisfied.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN 33. B IKEFIGFHEI

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to the
MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by the
employees.

The subsidiary established in the PRC contributes based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the employee to a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan organised by
relevant government authorities in the PRC on a monthly
basis. The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
further retired employees under these plans and the Group
has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred. Assets of the plans are held and
managed by government authorities and are separate from
those of the Group.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB12,432,000 (2020: RMB6,087,000), representing
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was
no forfeited contributions under the defined contribution
(2020: nil) under the defined contribution schemes and no
utilisation of forfeited contributions. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had no forfeited contribution available to
reduce its contribution to the retirement schemes in future
years (2020: nil).

AEEREREENMAREREER
VREEAE  ZFEZEEEAE
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34.

35.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged or
discounted the following assets to secure banking and
borrowing facilities and factoring loan granted to the Group:

34.

B EK
RZE-_—F+=_A=+—8 ' AE#E
BYIAEERITRETBEURREE
FoAREBEEFLRITEUATEE ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T

Trade and bills receivables B 5 rWEIE KR E R

(note 19) (K122 19) 38,859 29,361

Pledged bank deposits (note 22) B KIRRITIFER (Aa£22) 219,165 251,071

Ownership interests in land and T RIEFA RS

building (note 15) (H1it15) 53,712 56,792

Total st 311,736 337,224

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. 54X AR ER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from period year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings,
net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
of the Group periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
capital injection as well as the raise of additional borrowings
as additional capital or the redemption of existing debt.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

36. @ IT A

(@ €MIAZSE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised BHEHEKAGTEZ
cost (including bank balances SREE (BIERIT
and cash) HEHRER®) 542,106 638,492
Financial liabilities eMERE
Financial liabilities at amortised RN AFTE
cost TRIBE 652,686 730,075

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, restricted deposits, amount due from
shareholders, bank balances and cash, trade and bill
payables and other payables and borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments included market risk (credit risk,
currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk). The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(b) MEEREEBFERBE

AEENTIESRTIABEESE
Wk TE & e W R i - B Al FEUGRIR
EEMBOTER ZRBIEFRE
WHRHRE RITEHBRLRAE &
SN FARENREAREME
FRIBEMETK
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ARE-BAREeRTAABNE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

()

Currency risk

The Group’s major operating subsidiary has
foreign currency sales, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no
significant impacts on the results of the Group
would arise from the changes in foreign currency
rates, accordingly sensitivity analysis in this
respect is not presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate borrowings (Note 27)
and certain pledged bank deposits (Note 22).
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to certain variable-rate pledged
bank deposits (Note 22), bank balances (Note
24) and variable-rate bank borrowings (Note 27).
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of PBOC benchmark lending
rate arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank
borrowings which are denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

In the management’s opinion, the Group does
not have material interest rate risk exposure and
hence no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE
36. £l T A (@)
(b) B EEEBZRBEE @

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In determining the ECL for trade and bills receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding trade and bills receivables are
insignificant.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess
the expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss for all trade and bills receivables. The Group
determines the ECL on an individual basis and/or
collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as
the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

36. @ T B @)
(b) HEEREEEEREEK @)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables, the Group has assessed whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

Management considered amount due from
shareholders to be low credit risk and thus the
impairment provision recognised during the year was
limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in China, which
accounted for 52% (2020: China 12%) of the total
trade and bill receivables respectively as at 31
December 2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 18%
(31 December 2020: 23%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
trade debtor as at 31 December 2021 and 65% (31
December 2020: 49%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest trade
debtors as at 31 December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE
36. £l T A (@)
(b) BEEREEBERBEK @)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, the Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are prepared based on
the agreed repayment dates. Specifically, borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in
“Less than 1 year or on demand” band regardless of
the probability of the financial institution choosing to
exercise their rights.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H =+—HIFFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T A @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MR EEEHEREE &
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE R (@)
Liquidlity table BB £ K&

More than More than

Less than 1yearbut  two year but Total

1yearor notexceeding not exceeding More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years fiveyears  cash flows Amount
SR-E5 -0 MENL AHR

gEx BTREmE BTERIE  IFNL REREAE REE
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'O0D  RMBU00
ARBTRL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARRTR

At 31 December 2021 RZE--5+ZB=1-H

Trade and bl payables EAEMNTARENSE 524,131 - - - 524,131 524,131
Accruals and offer payables  TESTER RAMERRE 70,387 - - - 70,387 70,387
Lease liablties HEafk 13473 8,128 - - 21,601 20,288
Borrowings EE 83127 3,850 10,563 3,955 61495 58,168
651,118 11,978 10,563 3,955 677,614 672,974
More than More than

Lessthan  1yearbutnot  two year but Total
1 year or exceeding  not exceeding Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years five years cash flows Amount

SR—FF &t FENE REER

BEX BTEEME BTERLE  IfNL AEREEE FEE
RVBOOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

At 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+ZA=1-H

Trade and bil payables BARMTEREMNEE 501,972 = = s 591972 501,972
Accruals and other payables st E A RE A 79,002 = = : 79,002 79,002
Lease liabilties HEBE 6,754 183 - = 6,937 6,653
Borrowings EE 35,900 3309 10,777 7954 57,040 53518

713628 3492 10,777 7954 735,851 731,145
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e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE
36. £l T A (@)
(b) B EEEBZRBEE @

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
is included in the “less than 1 year or on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2021, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these borrowings amounted to
RMB42,162,000 (2020: RMB34,463,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the financial institutions will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to approximately RMB45,358,000 (2020:
RMB37,076,000). All borrowings with a “repayable on
demand clause” are with scheduled repayment of less
than 1 year.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair value due to
their immediate or short-term maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —#+_-_H=+—HIFFE

37.BH IR S
(a) BREAMBRELMEGHBES

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, during the years, the Group has G AR ANE B EER A R E]
entered into the following transactions with related SRS
companies.
Related Nature of 2021 2020
companies 2] NG| transaction X ZME —E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBTTT

Shenzhen Mars FYIAE Sales HE 1,202 751

Wit ZERXZEARBRBBITONEER
WhIE 2 RRETT - AR B ERRYME
HREFART—BARTEAMEBER
A&

Note: These transactions were carried out at terms determined and
agreed by the Group and the relevant parties.

(b) Compensation of key management b) TEEBAE ZHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ARG EERHEMEFEERAER
other members of key management during the year TEEHHMAT
was as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREFT
Short-term benefits ESRR R 2,434 2,115
Post-employment benefits BB 1218 A 110 81
2,544 2,196
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ARNBEZEREEITERAEN M

key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

DHEFMEEEEREARERT
BBPIEETE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIREME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE
38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 38. EEA QA MBEMRREKRNWERE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT ARETIT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S IEPNEILEE F @) 59,856 65,287
Current Assets RBEE
Prepayments and other TEAS 3038 & H Ath g U
receivables FRIB - 145
Bank balances and cash WRITHEBR MRS 448 143
448 288
Current Liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables &=t £ F K H i i f+f
IE 995 1,217
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE{ BB A 7] FIA 2,802 2,884
3,797 4,101
Net current liabilities REBEETFHE (3,349) (3,813)
Total assets less current BEEBAEBERE
liabilities 56,507 61,474
Capital and Reserves EXAR#E
Share capital [N 8,945 8,945
Reserves i (b) 47,562 52,529
Total Equity R&HE 56,507 61,474

Represent amount less then RMB1,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H =+—HIFFE

38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Interests in subsidiaries

(b)

(%)

(@) AHE QTR

38. EBAQ AR BRR RN EH

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT

Unlisted investment, at cost JELEMIRE R A) = =

Amount due from a subsidiary JE LB B A B 7B

(Note) (Hta) 59,856 65,287
59,856 65,287

Note: The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The directors of the Company do
not expect repayments from subsidiaries within next twelve

Represent amount less than RMB1,000

months from the end of the reporting period.

Reserves of the Company

EEBEENARE1,0007T

Bat AT R B FUR A EER 8 RA

(b) X2 F M

Share Accumulated
premium loss Total
BREE REtE#R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2019 R T —h&F
and 1 January 2020 +-A=+—HK
—E-FTF—-H—H 89,439 (28,931) 60,508
Loss and total FABEBEREEMY
comprehensive FEk)
expense for the year - (7,979) (7,979)
At 31 December 2020 RZ-ZTZZTF
and 1 January 2021 +—A=+—HK
—E-—F%—HA—H 89,439 (36,910) 52,529
Loss and total FABBREEMX
comprehensive wBEE
expense for the year - (4,967) (4,967)
At 31 December 2021 R ZT——4
+—A=+—8 89,439 (41,877) 47,562
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE
39. B AR ZFH1E
(a) MIEARN—KRER

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) General information of subsidiaries

Issued and
Place and fully paid Equity interest and
date of share capital/ voting power
Name of incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
subsidiaries establishment capital to the Company activity
HEKL/ ERTRER FAREERE
WEARER MYt ERAH RE/EMER BERREE TEER
2021 2020
ZEC-% —ZCEF
Directly held
EERE
Grace Kirin' BVI usD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 June 2018
i RBRAEE 1% 100% 100% REER
ZE-N\F
~NAZTNB
Indirectly held
BEEE
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited? 27 August 2018
AEBHERBBEAR? B 10,0007 7T 100% 100%  REER
ZE-N\F
NAZ++t8
Shenzhen Sprocomm*® PRC RMB55,556,000 100% 100%  Trading of feature
16 September 2009 phones and smart
phone
AYIRH? HE AR H55,556,0007C 100% 100% BENEEFELER
—TENE T
NATRE
Shanghai Sprocomm™ PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
24 November 2009 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
LERHE i AR 2,000,007 100% 100% HEEHERBERN
ZETNF
+-A-t+mA
Guizhou Sprocomm™ PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Research and
8 June 2016 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
BMARE" HE AR #5,000,0007 100% 100% HEZHERABERME
“E-RE
~ANR

208 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. M B A B 2 515 (@)

(Continued)

(a) MEBATRMH—RER (&)

(a) General information of subsidiaries

(Continued)

Issued and
Place and fully paid Equity interest and
date of share capital/ voting power
Name of incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
subsidiaries establishment capital to the Company activity
gREL/ ERTRER FAREERE
WEAREE Myt ERAH BA/ ERER BERREE TEXR
2021 2020
“E--%F ZZ-%E
Chengdu Sprocomm™ PRC RMB15,000,000 100% 66.67%  Research and
2 August 2017 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
RERE HhE AR 15,000,000 7T 100%  6667% HEEE RBE K
i 3
NAZH
HK Sprocomm? Hong Kong USD50,000 100% 100%  Trading of features
15 January 2016 phones and smart
phone
EERE? B 50,000% 7T 100% 100% EBENFEEFERE®
ZT-AF Fi
—A+HA
Sprocomm Technologies India® India INR145,647 82.03% 82.03%  Customer service and
24 August 2016 technical support
Sprocomm Technologies India® HE 145647 ENEEL  82.03% 82.03% HPRBREMZE
ZERE
PAY: s =
Guizhou Mars™ PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
29 June 2016 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
EMAR: HE AR ¥5,000,0007 100% 100%  HEEFERABRMN
“ET-RF
NAZTHA
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

30. B~ B 2518 @)

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries

(Continued)

(a) MEBATRMH—RER (&)

Issued and
Place and fully paid Equity interest and
date of share capital/ voting power
Name of incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
subsidiaries establishment capital to the Company activity
gL/ ERTRER FAREERE
WEAREE My ERAH BA/ ERER BERREE TEXR
2021 2020
“Z--%F ZZ-%E
Luzhou Sprocomm* PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of feature
(former known as “Luzhou 1 September 2017 phones and smart
Spiking’) phones
EMAE (178 P AR¥100,000000c  100% 100% BEDREFERER
[EAMBLE]) e 3 T
NA—H
Sprocomm Intelligence PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
Technologies Limited* 24 December 2019 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
Sprocomm Inteligence # AR 20,000,000 7T 100% 100%  FEEHE REBEM
Technologies Limited ** K3
TZAZt+mA
Shanghai Hai Huan Ming Chong PRC RMBB800,000 N/A 70%  Software development
Limited*® 1 June 2020 company
Shanghai Hai Huan Ming Chong H AR 800,0007T TER 0% HHEERF
Limited ¢ ke Sl 12
~A—H
Shenzhen Fengma New Energy PRC RMB3,000,000 100% N/A  Researchand
Technology Co., Ltd. 1 December 2021 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
Shenzhen Fengma New Energy HE AR 3,000,000 100% TER  EERABRMmTE
Technology Co., Ltd. ¥ —E-F
+=A—A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

30. B~ B 2518 @)

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

* The English name is for identification only.

! Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin

Islands.
2 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong.
8 Wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

4 Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC.

5 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in India.

6 The subsidiary was disposed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

7 The subsidiary was established during the year ended 31
December 2021.

All subsidiaries now comprising the Group are limited
liability companies and have adopted 31 December
as their financial year end date, except for Sprocomm
Technologies India which have a year-end date of 31
March.

(

a) MBATN—RES @

* RN BEERHR -

! REBRELZEHSEMAILOARAT -

2 REBEMRZOERAF -
8 PP BRI BE DR
¢ RABIRIZWARAR
° RENERIWBRAF -

© EMEAARBE-E-—F+=A
S+—RIEETE -

REBEBRBETZANE QR
BERQARIEEN T ZA=+—
BIEABRSEZVREELER (K
Sprocomm Technologies Indiaf&4h -
HEE/#ERA=ZA=+—H) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. M B A B 2 515 (@)

(Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary
that have non-controlling interest

The following table set out the summarised financial
information of the non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of

(b) ERFEREZNFZEHM

BRI
TREINAEEIERENER AN
B ERBEE -

the Group:
Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights Loss allocated to Accumulated
held by non-controlling non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
interests at 31 December  for the year ended 31 December at 31 December
Rt=A=+-B
HEZRERRENARE HET-A=t-A Rt=A=t+-BH
BRERREELL LEEARZFERBENER RitFERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
It b ZRCRF ZRI-F CR-RF CRC-f CECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  AREBTT ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR
(Chengdu Sprocomm (ot REREWE) - 33.33% 19 2 - 2064
Indvidually immaterial subsiclary BB FERRER 2 ERIEE
with non-controling inferest ZHELF 286 172 87) (253)
Total @t 305 1% 87) 1811

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s subsidiary that has non-controlling interest
that is material to the Group, before intra-group

BRELASEBEE 2 RS
MAKERBARZMBEER (RE
BA AR EEHEA) AT

eliminations:

31/12/2020
—TEF
+-A=+—8H
RMB’000
Chengdu Sprocomm REBRE AREF T
Current assets MENEE 7,193
Non-current assets EMBEE 47
Current liabilities mEAaE (1,050)

Equity attributable to owners of NATHEB AEGER
the Company (4,126)
Non-controlling interests eI R 2,064
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIREME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ -H=+—HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. fft & A Al Z 715 (@)
(Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary (b) BEHFEREZNEZEN
that have non-controlling interest [ENEIESAC )

(Continued)

Year ended
31/12/2020
HE_Z_TF
+=ZA=+—8H
IEFE
RMB’000
Chengdu Sprocomm RERE ARMBFT
Revenue & 164
Expense 553 (234)
Loss for the year FNEE (70)
Loss and total comprehensive KRalHEE ANEEEER
expense attributable to owners EEEEg ot
of the Company (47)
Loss and total comprehensive HFIEREREHEER
expense attributable to FHEAXBE
non-controlling interest (23)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREERZ 8%
expenses for the year (70)
Net cash outflow from operating L TEBMIR SR F R
activities (281)
Net cash inflow from investing JEENIRESRAFRE
activities 300
Net cash inflow from financing BREFFMNRSRAFRE
activities =
Net cash inflow REMANFRE 19
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired Kt - BE2—ZT-_—F+=-A=+—H
33.3% equity interest in Chengdu Sprocomm, a subsidiary of A B LA A R ¥ 2,383,000 0 IR
the Company from the non-controlling interests shareholder for iz REEAARKNEA A
a consideration of RMB2,383,000. Upon the completion of the 33.3% I S EMIE -
transaction, the Group held 100% of Chengdu Sprocomm. BREBR 1 2 EP RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 4. BEETHEEZEEGHE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFLAEEREFTHEENEEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B pREBeRIBSEH -MEFTD
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EEMNAGERERESRENKRKIBELT
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows ERERARERERTHOEARES
will be, classified in the consolidated statements of cash MBS RENEE -

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
R HEAE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARBEFT
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H
1 January 2020 RZZ-Z4-A-H 206,257 17,644 223,901
Non-cash movements EREEE
New lease arrangement (Note 16)  #1E %5k (A7:2 16) - 921 921
Exchange realignment (R (1,491) - (1,491)
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BEARERAM78) 4,840 643 5,483
Financing cash inflows BERSMA 32,905 - 32,905
Financing cash outflows BERSRN (188,993) (12,555) (201,548)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-TF+-A=1—H 53,518 6,653 60,171
As at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—f—H 53,518 6,653 60,171
Non-cash movements FHREE
New lease arrangement (Note 16) i E %k (A5 16) - 27,389 27,389
Exchange realignment (RS (602) - (328)
Finance costs incurred (Note &) BELBERK(HES) 5,247 1,221 6,468
Financing cash inflows RERERA 284,457 - 284,183
Financing cash outflows BERERM (284,452) (14,975) (299,427)
As at 31 December 2021 R-Z-—%#+-F=+-8 58,168 20,288 78,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F = —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

41. LITIGATIONS 41. FF 8

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an independent
factoring company (the “Plaintiff”) filed a lawsuit at Beijing
Haidian District People’s Court (the “District Court”)
against Shenzhen Sprocomm and a customer of Shenzhen
Sprocomm owing the factored accounts receivable (the
“First Defendant”) for the repayment of the outstanding
accounts receivable under the factoring agreement.
Provision for litigation loss of approximately RMB1,766,000
was made during the year ended 31 December 2019 with
reference to legal opinion obtained and the then available
information.

In December 2020, Shenzhen Sprocomm has received
the judgement of the first trial from the District Court ruling
it to repay the factored loan amount at approximately
RMB26,805,000 and the relevant interest at approximately
RMB3,303,000.

The directors of the Company, with reference to the
updated legal opinion and the then available information,
had made further provision for loss on litigation of
approximately RMB327,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020. Accumulated provision for loss on
litigation of RMB2,093,000 (being the sum of the provision
for litigation loss in 2019 and 2020) was included in other
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Shenzhen
Sprocomm filed an appeal (the “Appeal”) to the First
Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing Municipality (the
“First Intermediate Court”) and received the judgement
of the second trial from the First Intermediate Court which
dismissed the Appeal and ruled that the District Court’s
decision remains effective. The judgement was executed
by the District Court on 30 August 2021 and subsequently,
Shenzhen Sprocomm paid an aggregate amounts of
RMB31,138,000 (which comprised of the principal,
interest and legal cost of approximately RMB26,805,000,
RMB4,019,000 and RMB314,000 respectively) to settle the
litigation claim.

BE-Z—hhE+-A=+—HILFEE -
—EBEZREAR([RE]) RIERTE
TEEARERT ([HEERR]) BLIEERE
WEE TR EERRRERITEFINKRE
F—R2EHERRFEREFRORNKE R
FUE—HEDREBHFD -2 ES
REEEANERATSNEREZ BER
BE_Z-NF+-_A=+—RBLFE
sHRERAE B BB AR 1,766,000 7T °

RZBEZZF+=A FINKEE KE
@A —FBHAE T HEAEER
B E RSO AR 26,805,000 & HH
B F) 2 49 AR % 3,303,000 7T °

RAAREZ2ERGTNEZERARER
AENER CRBE-E T+
A=+ HIEFERFRERE — Tt
BB ARBE327,0007T ° 5 5F A
E i B A A R#2,093,000T (A1 =&
—NEFER-ZE_ZFHFRDEBBEEZM) -
HAZZS-_EE+_A=+—HBHNEA
B Ak R R P M B A FE A 5B A o

REBEE_ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H8L
FE FRIREALEETE—FRAR
e ([E—F@ERDRE EF (L
) W R E — R ZFH R
£ HREE LR YEEHE AR
HoRMIZ AW - HRER T - —FN
A=+HAAaEERHIT  EEFIK
B A £ AR 31,138,000 (B
e FIERERZBASINEARK
26,805,0007C * A K # 4,019,000 7T & A
R#314,0007T) » A ZFAREe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN =

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —4# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFE

41.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

The aforesaid litigation settlement of RMB31,138,000, net
of the prior receipt in advance from the First Defendant of
approximately RMB21,663,000 which Shenzhen Sprocomm
was legally entitled to offset against the litigation claim.
Accumulated provision for loss on litigation in prior years
was approximately RMB2,093,000, additional amounted to
RMB7,382,000 was recognised as loss on litigation included
in administrative and other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (Note 10).

In addition, pursuant to a deed of indemnity with the
Controlling shareholders signed on 18 October 2019,
which entitled the Group to all claims including legal costs
and expenses incurred in relation to the relevant litigation,
the Group recognised indemnification for litigation loss of
approximately RMB9,475,000 by mutual consent from
the controlling shareholders in other gains and income in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, upon the settlement of the
aforesaid litigation during the year ended 31 December
2021.

21 6 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2021

41. FFFR ()

i FREAR AR £ A R #31,138,0007T
EMBRIATFELE —RENRBBHOAR
# 21,663,000 7T ORI KRB HFREBEAE
BEFAREIE) - BAEFE RFTFHFNRE
KB AR 2,093,000T ' REZE—
T-—F+-_A=t+—HBIEFE B
M AR 7,382,000 L E FER B FFFAEK -

AAGAEEMEMEEEERANTT
B R A 7 32 (BEE10) ©

AN RER-F-AFTATNAR
%m%%&&%m%ﬁ£ﬁ RAEEHA
RESHAERE BREMABEBHFAEL

m&@%%&ﬁi REBEE-_ZE=-_—F
+—H:+—E¢¢F AEBEE Lt
FEAEMMEEE  NFEBEaREME
Hl =z P E Al R AEREE
FRBEBEREES TRFRIEBLRFBE
# AR ¥59,475,000 7T °



Sprocomm Intelligence Limited



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	五年財務概要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	封底

